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More than three decades have seemingly flown by since JOYCE

first opened its doors in Hong Kong — in terms of fashion and

decorative currents, a decidedly different city than in the early 1970s. We
are proud of the unique contribution which JOYCE has made

to the development of local and regional sensibilities and our

role in shaping one of the world’s leading retail capitals. With the

support of our shareholders, employees and partners, we remain
committed to building on these accomplishments.
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Chairman’s Statement

OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2010 reflects the stabilisation of the Group’s China
retail operations and the gradual return of consumer confidence to Hong Kong in the second half of the
financial year.

Net profit attributable to Shareholders was HK$35.2 million (2009: HK$3.1 million). Earnings per share were
2.2 cents (2009: 0.2 cents).

Group turnover for the year totaled HK$1,063.8 million (2009: HK$979.9 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 8.6% compared with 5.7% in the preceding year.

Hong Kong retail turnover grew by 9.7% to HK$912.4 million (2009: HK$832.0 million), compared with just
0.2% in the preceding year, reflecting early signs of a very gradual recovery in the economy and the financial
markets in the second half of the financial year.

In mainland China, with a more efficient retail portfolio in place following the closure of under-performing
outlets, the Group managed to break even this year, versus the substantial operating loss of a year earlier.
Turnover grew by 2.7%.

Closely monitored cost controls continue to be key to steering the Group’s business through an indefinite
period of global economic uncertainty and currency fluctuations, particularly in Europe, where many of
JOYCE'’s principal brands are based.

The Group’s business model and growth strategy continue to evolve, with a clear emphasis on the core
JOYCE multi-label operation and customer loyalty. Going forward, we are well-positioned to capitalise on
opportunities in Hong Kong and even more significantly, longer-term, in the less-developed mainland China
market.

Having said that, the outlook for the specialty-retailing sector in Hong Kong and mainland China is difficult
to forecast. Resistant as both Hong Kong and mainland China have proven to be to global economic
disruptions, our optimism remains somewhat guarded, and our expectations for the pace and consistency
of growth are moderate. Large, unresolved macroeconomic questions remain, most recently the sovereign
debt problems and currency weakness that bedevil the euro zone. There are, as well, very real operating
challenges ahead, including escalating rental costs for prime retail locations, inflationary pressure on
purchasing power, and exchange rate fluctuations. Competition in the sector remains keen.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

At the financial year-end, the Group operated a total of 54 shops (2009: 63), comprising 3 multi-label JOYCE
stores, 20 mono-brand shops (including 4 Boss shops) and 6 JOYCE Beauty outlets in Hong Kong, 10 Marni
shops in Hong Kong and Taiwan under the joint venture business with Marni International S.A., and 15 shops
in mainland China including 9 directly operated shops and 6 sub-franchised Etro shops.

Hong Kong
A total of four new shops were opened during the year, including a 1,100-square-foot Balenciaga store at
The Landmark in Central.

In August 2009, renovations to the multi-label JOYCE Pacific Place, historically the edgiest of the Group’s

multi-label stores and still widely perceived as such, were completed. Some 50% of the labels now carried
are exclusive to the store, an important additional differentiator which has helped the store attract a wider
customer base.

In October 2009, in collaboration with the On Pedder group, the multi-label JOYCE flagship store at New
World Tower on Queen’s Road Central opened a women'’s footwear and accessories area on the store’s first
floor. Subsequently, the collaboration has been extended to the multi-label JOYCE stores on Canton Road in
Tsimshatsui and at Plaza 66 in Shanghai.

The multi-label JOYCE store on Canton Road in Tsimshatsui is undergoing a complete renovation in phases,
begun in April 2010 and due to be completed at the end of August 2010. The store has remained open
throughout the renovation. The redesigned store features a new On Pedder footwear and accessories
concession, as noted above, and a new-look JOYCE Beauty corner, both of which were opened in April
2010.

Three JOYCE Beauty outlets were opened in September 2009, marking a strategic investment in this division,
which includes stepped-up marketing and visual merchandising. JOYCE Beauty corners were opened in the
Lane Crawford stores at Pacific Place (relocated from a corner in JOYCE Pacific Place) and the International
Finance Centre. A corner was also opened in the Lane Crawford store at Times Square in Causeway Bay
(relocated from a previous Times Square location). The JOYCE Beauty shop-in-shop at JOYCE flagship store
at New World Tower was renovated and its size doubled to 2,500 square feet. Together with the freestanding
shop at Festival Walk in Kowloon Tong, the newly renovated shop-in-shop at the JOYCE store on Canton
Road in Tsimshatsui and the new freestanding shop at Lee Gardens Two in Causeway Bay, the JOYCE
Beauty division now operates seven retail outlets offering customers an unprecedented choice of unique
brands.
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Mainland China

The Group has consolidated its China retail operations with a view to improving the division’s profitability and
positioning the retail portfolio for continued development in the country’s key first- and second-tier cities,
closing a total of eight under-performing shops during the financial year, seven of these during the first half.

The 7,800-square-foot JOYCE multi-label flagship at Plaza 66 on Shanghai’s Nanjing West Road performed
well in its third year of operation. In line with the Group’s strategic emphasis on its multi-label operations,
upon renewal of the store’s lease it will fully renovate the store, with work to be completed in the fourth
quarter of calendar 2010.

At year-end, the Group’s retail network in mainland China comprised nine directly operated outlets in
Shanghai, Beijing, Hangzhou and Dalian, and six sub-franchised Etro outlets including shops in Harbin,
Shenyang, Chengdu and Beijing.

Marni Joint Venture Business

The joint venture business currently operates ten Marni boutiques in Hong Kong and Taiwan, including a new
warehouse outlet at Ap Lei Chau opened in August 2009. In September 2009, the concession corner at
Pacific Place was relocated within the mall from the JOYCE store to the Lane Crawford store and increased
its size to 800 square feet. The joint venture business achieved an improvement in sales for the financial
year.

Marketing
The year’s marketing and promotional programs were notable for their innovativeness, reach and measurable
effectiveness.

In October 2009, JOYCE brought Mike Figgis, the acclaimed British film director, to Hong Kong to present
“SoHo Composites #3 Hong Kong”, an exciting initiative that fused photography, performance art, fashion
and philanthropy in support of two local organisations, The Photographer’s Gallery and the Hong Kong
Fashion Designers Association. A gala reception to celebrate the success of the exhibition, hosted at the
JOYCE flagship store at New World Tower, drew hundreds of Hong Kong’s leading tastemakers and
fashionistas. Interactive promotions exclusive to JOYCE Card holders drew a strong response.

In January 2010, a private preview of the Spring/Summer 2010 collections, showcasing 21 leading labels

carried by JOYCE, was held at Hullett House in Tsimshatsui, the restored former Marine Police Headquarters,
a local heritage site.
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Chairman’s Statement

In a further promotion of the Spring/Summer 2010 season, JOYCE invited sisters Laura and Kate Mulleavy,
the celebrated designers of the Rodarte label, the luxury jewelry brand SWAROVSKI ELEMENTS, the
award-winning actress Maggie Cheung, filmmaker Wing Shya and composer Peter Kam, and popular singers
Rebecca Pan and Jenny Lewis to collaborate on a series of in-store exhibits, a silent auction to benefit
UNICEF and a short film for screening at the JOYCE Gallery in Paris during the city’s September 2010
fashion week. Ancillary events included private appointments for VIP customers with the Mulleavy sisters, and
a gala party at The Conservancy Association Centre, a heritage site in Hong Kong’s Sai Ying Pun district.

In March 2010, the JOYCE flagship store at New World Tower celebrated the launch of the Spring/Summer
2010 Versace Ready-to-Wear and Atelier collections with an in-window, live-model display of the collections
and a cocktail reception, attended by Versace’s Creative Director and Vice President, Donatella Versace.

The JOYCE Card continues to be a potent and valuable marketing platform. New, well-received bonus
programs were launched in Hong Kong and mainland China. The number of cardholders has increased by
9% for the financial year.

Proposed Privatisation

In February 2010, following the acquisition by Allied Wisdom International Limited (“Allied Wisdom”), the
immediate parent company of the Group, of the Ma family’s entire shareholding interest in the Company, a
proposal by way of a scheme of arrangement was put forward by Allied Wisdom as a courtesy to the
remaining Shareholders to dispose of their shares at the same price of HK$0.20 per share as that paid to
the Ma family. The scheme did not gain the requisite approval and the Company remains publicly listed.

Final Dividend

In view of the Group’s solid financial situation and profitable performance, the Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of 1.0 cent per share (2009: Nil) for the financial year.

In conclusion, the Board remains grateful to the Group’s employees, managers, partners and other stakeholders
for their unwavering commitment to and stewardship of the JOYCE brand, now in its fourth decade of

industry leadership.

Stephen T. H. Ng
Chairman

14 July 2010
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

(A) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(1) Business Review
An analysis on the Group’s business for the year under review is given in the Chairman’s
Statement under the section headed “Business Review”.

(2) Financial Review
() Review of 2009/10 Results
The Group reported net profit attributable to Shareholders of HK$35.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$3.1 million). Earnings per share were 2.2 cents (2009: 0.2
cents).

With signs of a stabilising global economy and a revival of local consumer confidence
apparent in the second half of the year, the Group managed to achieve an 8.6% annual
growth in turnover, to HK$1,063.8 million.

Hong Kong retail operations continue to be the core business of the Group. The Hong Kong
division reported 9.7% growth in turnover for the year, representing 85.8% (2009: 84.9%) of
total Group turnover.

The China division reported an increase of 2.7% in annual turnover, representing 14.2%
(2009: 15.0%) of total Group turnover. The Group trimmed its China retail operations, closing
several under-performing shops during the year. With improved sales contributions from a
leaner and more efficient portfolio, including, notably, turnover growth at the multi-label
JOYCE store at Plaza 66 in Shanghai, the China division managed to achieve breakeven in
annual operating profit, compared with its operating loss in the previous year.

Improved consumer sentiment in the second half of the year enabled the Group to minimise
discounting during the Fall/Winter sales period, which improved gross profit margins by 2.7
percentage points. However, retail rental costs exerted pressure on profitability, although the
Group managed to improve its operating overheads-to-turnover ratio through stringent cost
containment measures. During the year, a total impairment loss for fixed assets of HK$7.7
million was provided for under-performing shops in Hong Kong and China.

The profit contribution from the joint venture business with Marni International S.A., in which

the Group holds a 49% interest, increased to HK$3.3 million (2009: HK$0.4 million) as a
result of improved sales.
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() Liquidity and Financial Resources
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s financial position remained liquid with total cash deposits and
cash on hand amounting to HK$315.3 million. No bank borrowings were outstanding at 31
March 2010.

(Ill) Foreign Exchange Risk Management
Most of the Group’s imported purchases are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in
Euros. To minimise exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group from time to time
reviews its foreign exchange positions and, when it considers appropriate and necessary, will
hedge its foreign exchange exposure by means of forward foreign exchange contracts.

(IV) Finance
At 31 March 2010, the Group had banking facilities totalling HK$233.0 million (2009:
HK$233.0 million).

(V) Employees
The Group employed 507 staff as at 31 March 2010. Employees are remunerated according
to the nature of their positions and market trends, with merit components incorporated in
annual salary increments to reward and motivate individual performance. The Group provides
appropriate various job-related training programs to staff. Total staff costs for the year ended
31 March 2010 amounted to HK$128.6 million.

(B) BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

(1) Directors
Stephen T. H. NG, Chairman (Age: 57)
Mr. Ng has been a Director of the Company since 2000 and became the Chairman of the
Company in November 2007. Mr. Ng is the deputy chairman of publicly-listed Wheelock and
Company Limited (“Wheelock”). He is also the deputy chairman and managing director of The
Wharf (Holdings) Limited (“Wharf”) and the chairman and chief executive officer of i-CABLE
Communications Limited (“i-CABLE”) as well as the chairman of Harbour Centre Development
Limited (“HCDL”), all such companies being publicly-listed subsidiaries of Wheelock.
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Disclosure of Further Corporate Information

Antonio CHAN, Director (Age: 62)

Mr. Chan, FCA(AUST), FCPA, FCIS, FHKIoD, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2004. He also serves as a member and the chairman of the Company’s Audit
Committee and a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chan has spent 36
years in the accounting profession and practised as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong
for over 20 years. He has had extensive experience in management, auditing and investigation,
executive recruitment, business consulting, corporate finance and administration. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Surface Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited, a company
listed in Singapore. He serves as a pastor with Asian Outreach International. Mr. Chan is a
Chartered Accountant and Certified Practising Accountant in Australia and senior member of a
number of professional bodies, including fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and fellow of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Doreen Y. F. LEE, Director (Age: 54)

Ms. Lee has been a Director of the Company since 2003. She is an executive director of Wharf,
the senior managing director of Wharf China Estates Limited, the managing director of Harbour
City Estates Limited, Times Square Limited and Wharf Estates Limited, all being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Wharf. Furthermore, she has become a director of HCDL since 1 July 2010. Ms.
Lee is a graduate of The University of Hong Kong where she obtained her bachelor’s degree in
Arts (Hon).

Eric F. C. LI, Director (Age: 81)

Mr. Li, BscEE, MscEE, MBA, FIM, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 1990. He is the chairman and chief executive officer of The Kowloon Dairy

Limited and a non-executive director of publicly-listed The Bank of East Asia, Limited, as well as
a director of BEA Life Limited, Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited and several other
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Arkansas, United States, a Master of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Michigan, United States, and a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the University of California, United States. He is also a fellow of the Chartered Management
Institute.

Eric K. K. LO, Director (Age: 61)

Mr. Lo has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 1998. He also
serves as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lo is
an independent non-executive director of publicly-listed The Sincere Company, Limited as well as
a director of several companies in Hong Kong.
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Paul Y. C. TSUI, Director (Age: 63)

Mr. Tsui, FCCA, FCPA, FCMA, FCIS, CGA-Canada, has been a Director of the Company since
2000. He also serves as a member and the chairman of the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Company’s Audit Committee. Mr. Tsui is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Furthermore, he is an executive director and the group chief financial
officer of both Wheelock and Wharf, and also a director of four publicly-listed subsidiaries of
Wheelock, namely, HCDL, i-CABLE, Wheelock Properties Limited and Wheelock Properties
(Singapore) Limited in Singapore.

Note: The Company confirms that it has received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors confirming their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and
considers them independent.

(2) Senior Management
Andrew D. F. KEITH, President (Age: 40)
Mr. Andrew Keith has been appointed President of the Company since May 2008. With more than
17 years of extensive international experience in product, design and brand management, Mr.
Andrew Keith has a proven record of success in maximising business opportunities, increasing
sales and growing bottom line profitability. Before joining the Group, he was employed by the Lane
Crawford group and led the repositioning of Lane Crawford’s merchandising in all product
categories, women’s, men’s, home, cosmetics and fine jewellery.

(C)DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) in respect of information required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange by the Directors and/or Chief Executive of the Company pursuant to the SFO or to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, there were no interests, both long and
short positions, held as at 31 March 2010 by any Directors or Chief Executive of the Company in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), nor had there been any rights to subscribe for any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company held by any of them at any time during the financial year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010
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(D)SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

Given below are the names of all parties, who/which were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2010, the
respective relevant numbers of shares in which they were, and/or were deemed to be, interested as at
that date as recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO (the
“Register”) and the percentages which the shares represented to the issued share capital of the

Company:
No. of Ordinary Shares
Names (percentage of issued capital)
(i)  Allied Wisdom International Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(i)  Wisdom Gateway Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(i)  HSBC Trustee (Guernsey) Limited 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)
(iv)  Mr. Peter K. C. Woo 1,183,838,723 (72.90%)

Note: Duplication occurs in respect of all of the shareholdings stated above in that they all represent the same block
of shares.

All the interests stated above represented long positions and as at 31 March 2010, there were no short
position interests recorded in the Register.

(E) PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes of the Group and the employers’ pension costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year under review are set out in Notes 2.17(c) and 7 to the
Financial Statements on pages 90 and 105 respectively.

The total employers’ pension cost in respect of all pension schemes of the Group, including the cost

related to the Mandatory Provident Fund which is not operated by the Group, charged to consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 March 2010 amounted to HK$6.1 million.
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(F) SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(1) Summary of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)

(@) Purpose of the Scheme:

To provide employees and the executives of the Group with the opportunity of acquiring an
equity interest in the Company, to continue to provide them with the motivation and incentive
to give best contribution towards the Group’s continued growth and success.

(b) Participants of the Scheme:

Any full-time employee or executive director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the
“Executive”) who has on the day preceding the date of offer been an employee or executive
director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for at least three years and any other
employee or executive director of the Company or any subsidiary nominated by the Directors
of the Company to be an Executive.

(c) (i) Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Shares”) available for issue under the Scheme and any other share option schemes as
at 31 March 2010:

136,380,000
(i)  Percentage of the issued share capital that it represents as at 31 March 2010:
8.4%
(d)  Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme as at 31 March 2010:

No option may be granted to any one Executive which if exercised in full would result in the
total number of Shares already issued and issuable to him under all the options previously
granted to him under the Scheme and also under other share option schemes and of Shares
issuable to that Executive under the proposed option exceeding 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of Shares in respect of which options may at that time be granted under
the Scheme and any such other schemes.

Furthermore, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
(including both exercised and outstanding options) granted to each Executive in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue unless approved by
Shareholders of the Company.
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(e)

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option:
Within five years from the date on which the option is offered.
Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised:
One year from the date on which the option is offered.
(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the option:
HK$10
(i) The period within which payments or calls must or may be made:
28 days after the offer date of an option
(iliy  The period within which loans for purposes of the payments or calls must be repaid:
Not applicable
Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors, but in any event must be at least
the higher of:

()  the indicative price per Share for the subscription of Shares under the option as
specified in the written offer;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;

and

(iv) the nominal value of a Share.
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(i) The remaining life of the Scheme:

Four years

(2) Details of share options granted under the Scheme
Set out below are particulars and movements during the financial year of the Company’s
outstanding share options under the Scheme which were granted to 11 employees (none of them
being Director of the Company), all of them working under employment contracts that are
regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes of the Employment Ordinance and all being
participants with options not exceeding the respective individual limits:

No. of ordinary No. of No. of ordinary Price per

shares represented  ordinary shares shares represented share

by unexercised represented by unexercised Period during payable

options by options options which rights on exercise

Date granted outstanding as at lapsed during outstanding as at exercisable  of options

(Day/Month/Year) 01/04/2009 the financial year 31/03/2010 (Day/Month/Year) (HK$)

17/09/2004 10,250,000 10,250,000 Nil 01/09/2005 to 0.405
31/08/2009

Except as disclosed above, no share option of the Company was issued, exercised, cancelled,
lapsed or outstanding throughout the financial year.

(G)MAJOR CUSTOMERS & SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted for approximately 2% of the
total sales for the year. Purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 42% of
the total purchases for the year and the purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 19%.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those Shareholders whom

to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010
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(H)DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui, being also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company’s parent company,
namely, Wisdom Gateway Limited (“WGL"), is considered under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as having
an interest in certain subsidiary(ies) of WGL which is/are engaged in retail businesses or an interest in
certain sub-holding company(ies) of the relevant subsidiary(ies).

The Lane Crawford store and some other retail businesses carried on by the relevant subsidiary(ies) of
WGL to a certain extent constitute competing businesses of the Group. Nevertheless, since the retail
businesses of the Group are primarily targeted at different sectors of the market and would attract
customers of different spending power or habit compared to those carried on by the relevant
subsidiary(ies) of WGL, the Group considers that its interests in the relevant sector of retailing business
is adequately safeguarded.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-executive Directors and the Audit
Committee of the Company would on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s retailing businesses are and continue to be run on the
basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of WGL group.

(1) PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws or regulations of Bermuda (in which
country the Company was incorporated) which, in the event of new shares being issued by the
Company, would oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders, or, in the event of
any Shareholders intending to dispose of any of their shareholdings in the Company, would require such
Shareholders to offer to sell the relevant shares to other Shareholders of the Company.

(J) BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

No bank borrowings were outstanding as at 31 March 2010.

(K)INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the financial year.

(L) PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2010.
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(M)DISCLOSURE OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is information in relation to certain continuing connected transactions involving the
Company and/or its subsidiaries, particulars of which were previously disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 1 April 2008 and 4 September 2009 and are required under the Listing Rules to
be disclosed in the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company.

() Master Concession Agreement for retail spaces at Lane Crawford
stores
During the financial year under review, there existed a renewal master concession agreement (the
“Renewal Agreement”) for a term of three years from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011 entered into
between the Company and Lane Crawford (Hong Kong) Limited (“LCHK”) for the purpose of
regulating certain concession arrangements with LCHK for the use of premises by the Group at
various retail spaces inside various Lane Crawford Stores operated by LCHK at different premises,
and among other things, adopting a revised annual cap amount in respect of the rental and/or
turnover commission payable by the Group to LCHK. Such retail spaces inside Lane Crawford
Stores are needed by the Group for operation of its retail businesses and generate additional retail
revenue which is beneficial to the Group.

LCHK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of WGL, which in turn is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Consequently, the Renewal Agreement together with various concession agreements
and/or individual concession agreements governed by the Renewal Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Under the Renewal Agreement, the aggregate annual rental/turnover commission payable by the
Group to LCHK is subject to an annual cap amount previously disclosed in the abovementioned
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2008. The aggregate annual rental/turnover
commission paid by the Group to LCHK under the individual concession agreements as covered
by the Renewal Agreement amounted HK$9.9 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.
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(I) Master Concession Agreement for retail spaces at JOYCE shops
On 4 September 2009, a master concession agreement (the “Master Concession Agreement”) for
a term of two years and six months from 1 October 2009 to 31 March 2012 was entered into
between the Company and WGL for the purpose of regulating various concession arrangements
relating to the leasing from time to time by the subsidiaries and/or associated companies of WGL
as concessionaires (the “Eligible Concessionaire(s)”), and subsidiaries of the Company as tenants
(the “Eligible Head Tenant(s)”), in respect of various retail spaces inside various JOYCE shops, and
among other things, adopting an annual cap amount in respect of the rental and/or turnover
commission payable by the Eligible Concessionaires to the Eligible Head Tenants during the term
of the Master Concession Agreement. On 4 September 2009, a concession agreement (the
“Existing Concession Agreement”), which is covered by the Master Concession Agreement, was
entered into between a subsidiary of the Company, as an Eligible Head Tenant, and a subsidiary
of WGL, as an Eligible Concessionaire, for leasing of certain retail spaces inside the JOYCE shop
in Queen’s Road Central. The entering into of the Master Concession Agreement together with
various individual concessional agreements will offer flexibility for further expansion of the trading
format and is considered beneficial to the Group.

As WGL is a substantial shareholder of the Company, the Master Concession Agreement and the
various concession arrangements, including all the individual concession agreements, constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company

Under the Master Concession Agreement, the rental and/or turnover commission payable by WGL
group to the Group is subject to the aggregate annual cap amounts previously disclosed in the
abovementioned announcement of the Company dated 4 September 2009. The aggregate annual
rental/turnover commission paid by WGL group to the Group under individual concession
agreements as covered by the Master Concession Agreement amounted HK$1.4 million for the
financial year ended 31 March 2010.
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Confirmation from Directors etc.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, of the Company have reviewed the

continuing connected transactions mentioned above (the “Transactions”) and confirmed that the Transactions

were entered into:

(@) by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms that are no less favourable than those

available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such Transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Furthermore, the auditor of the Company has advised the following:
(1)  the Transactions had received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;

(2) the Transactions had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
Transactions; and

(3) the relevant cap amounts have not been exceeded during the financial year ended 31 March 2010.
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Corporate Governance Report

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, all the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
were met by the Company.

(B) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors of the Company who were in office during the financial year ended 31 March 2010, they have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during the financial year.

(C)BOARD OF DIRECTORS

24

(i) Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and
Directors’ attendance
The Company’s Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive directors. Five Board meetings were held during the financial year
ended 31 March 2010. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out

below:

Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
Chairman

Stephen T. H. Ng 5/5

Non-executive Directors
Doreen VY. F. Lee 3/5
Paul Y. C. Tsui 5/5

Independent Non-executive Directors

Antonio Chan 4/5
Eric F. C. Li 4/5
Eric K. K. Lo 5/5

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



Each Director of the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her calibre, experience
and stature, and his/her potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring board approval were arranged by means
of circulation of written resolutions.

(ii) Operation of the Board
The Company is headed by an effective Board which takes decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. The Company’s management has closely monitored changes to regulations that
affect its corporate affairs and businesses, and changes to accounting standards, and adopted
appropriate reporting format in its interim report, annual report and other related documents to
present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. Where these changes are pertinent to the Company or Directors’ disclosure
obligations, the Directors are either briefed during Board meetings or issued with regular updates
and materials to keep them abreast of their responsibilities and of the conduct, business activities
and development of the Group. Newly appointed Directors receive briefings and orientation on
their legal and other responsibilities as a Director and the role of the Board. The Company has
also provided appropriate information in a timely manner to the Directors to enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the
Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Decisions on
important matters are specifically reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s general
operations are delegated to the management. Important matters include those affecting the
Group’s strategic policies, major investment and funding decisions and major commitments relating
to the Group’s operations.

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are distinct and separate.

The Chairman, namely, Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for
leading and managing the operation of the Board, focuses on Group strategies and Board issues, and
ensures a cohesive working relationship between members of the Board and management. He also
monitors the performance of the senior management of the Group. Presently, no employee of the
Company holds the office of chief executive officer. The job functions of chief executive officer of the
Company and the Group are performed by Mr. Andrew D. F. Keith and he is accountable to the
Chairman.
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Corporate Governance Report

(E) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All existing Non-executive Directors of the Company have their respective terms of appointment coming
to an end normally one year after re-election as Directors at the last Annual General Meeting.

(F) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee consisting of one Non-executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 March 2010.
Attendance of the Members is set out below:

Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
Paul Y. C. Tsui, Chairman 1/1
Antonio Chan 1/1
Eric K. K. Lo 1/1

(i) The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in
the Code. Given below are the main duties of the Remuneration Committee:

(@)

26

to consider the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management;

to review performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review the compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or appointment; and

to review compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct.
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(i)  The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the financial year ended 31 March 2010
is summarised below:

(@) review of the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

(b)  consideration of the emoluments for all Directors and senior management; and
(c) review of the level of fees for Directors and Audit Committee Members.

The basis of determining the emoluments payable to its Directors and senior management by the
Company is by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed company in Hong Kong
to directors and senior executives of comparable calibre and job responsibilities so as to ensure a fair
and competitive remuneration package as is fit and appropriate. Apart from a fee at the rate of
HK$45,000 per annum payable to Mr. Antonio Chan by reason of his being a Member and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, there was no other Director receiving any emoluments. The basis of
determining such Audit Committee Member’s fee is by reference to the level of fees of similar nature
normally paid by a listed company in Hong Kong to its audit committee members.

(G)NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and function of such committee are
performed by the Board.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the nomination policies, making recommendations to
Shareholders on Directors standing for re-election, providing sufficient biographical details of Directors to
enable Shareholders to make an informed decision on the re-election, and where necessary, nominate
Directors to fill casual vacancies. The Chairman from time to time reviews the composition of the Board
with particular regard to ensuring that there is an appropriate number of Directors on the Board
independent of management. He also identifies and nominates qualified individuals for appointment as
new Directors of the Company. New Directors of the Company will be appointed by the Board. Any and
all new Directors are subject to retirement from the Board at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company immediately following his or her appointment and may stand for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

(H)AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

)

28

The fees in relation to services, all related to the audit and taxation, provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to HK$1.0 million and HK$0.2
million respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of one Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors.

All Members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements as aided by the auditor
of the Group whenever required. In addition, Mr. Antonio Chan and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui have the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial matters.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2010. Attendance
of the Members is set out below:

Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
Antonio Chan, Chairman 1/2
Eric K. K. Lo 2/2
Paul Y. C. Tsui 2/2

(i) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations set out in
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Given below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(@) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of resignation or
dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of
the audit;

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



(©)

(e)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the Board,
focusing particularly on:

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(1)

(2)  major judgmental areas;

(3) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4) the going concern assumption;

(5) compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where necessary); and

to review the audit programme, and ensure co-ordination with external auditor and the
internal audit function.

(i)  The work performed by the Audit Committee for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 is
summarised below:

(a)

(o)

approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;

review of the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;

review of the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, with
particular consideration of the points mentioned in paragraph (i)(c) above regarding the duties

of the Audit Committee;

discussion with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of
the audit;

review of the audit programme and co-ordination between the external auditor and the
internal audit function;

review of the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; and

meeting with the external auditor.
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(J) INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the internal control system of the Group and, through the
Audit Committee, have reviewed the effectiveness of the system. The internal control system comprises
a well-defined organisational structure with specified limits of authority in place. Areas of responsibility
of each business and operational units are also clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
maintenance of proper accounting records, assurance of the reliability of financial information for internal
use or publication and compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. Such procedures are
designed to manage risks of failure in operational systems and can provide reasonable assurance
against material errors, losses or fraud.

The internal control function was set up to monitor compliance with policies and standards and the
effectiveness of internal control structures across the whole Group. The internal control function reports
to the Audit Committee. A full set of internal control reports will also be provided to the external
auditor.

A review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and procedures covering all
controls, including financial, operational and compliance and risk management, was conducted by the
Audit Committee and subsequently reported to the Board during the financial year ended 31 March
2010. Based on the result of the review, in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the
Directors considered that the internal control system and procedures of the Group were effective and
adequate.

(K)DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

30

FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2010, which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and of the Group
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended and in compliance with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules.
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In preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2010:

(i) appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently and in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards;

(i) reasonable judgements and estimates are made; and

(i) the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards are stated, if
applicable.

(L) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent
reporting of its performances and activities. Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders. The Company’s website www.irasia.com/listco/hk/joyce/index.htm provides email address,
postal address, fax number and telephone number by which enquiries may be put to the Company’s
Board. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains a wide range of
additional information on the Group’s business activities. As a standard part of the investor relations
programme to maintain a constant dialogue on the Group’s performance and objectives, senior
executives hold regular briefings and attend conferences with institutional investors and financial
analysts.

The Company encourages its Shareholders to attend Annual General Meetings to ensure a high level of
accountability and to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.

The Board and external auditor attend the Annual General Meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

(M)SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, on requisition of one or more Shareholders in aggregate
holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings, the Directors of the Company must convene a special general meeting.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND TRADING OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services to
Group companies and those of its principal subsidiaries are set out on page 130.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group and appropriations of profits for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 are set
out in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 68.

Movements in reserves during the financial year are set out in Note 28 to the Financial Statements on pages
123 and 124.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have now recommended for adoption at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 August
2010 the payment on 7 September 2010 to Shareholders on record as at 31 August 2010 of a final dividend
of 1.0 cent per share in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2010. This recommendation has been
disclosed in the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the financial year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements on pages 110 to 111.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year were Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng, Mr. Antonio Chan, Ms.
Doreen Y. F. Lee, Mr. Eric F. C. Li, Mr. Eric K. K. Lo and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all Directors will retire from the Board at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. None of the retiring Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company, any subsidiary or
holding company of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the financial year or at any time during that financial year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its holding company or any
subsidiary of that holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the financial year.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements now presented have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Wilson W. S. Chan
Secretary

Hong Kong, 14 July 2010

34 JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

EEMKESSTMERAR PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 130, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICEAVATERHOUSEH(QOPERS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-_O—OF=ZA=Z+—HILFE

2010 2009
—Oo-0#% —OOh%
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
FaE BT T BT T
Turnover E 5 1,063,776 979,953
Other income Eablg A 6 6,778 10,351
Direct costs and operating expenses BEERAREXER 7 (904,783) (881,582)
Selling and marketing expenses HE RIEHER 7 (40,757) (37,906)
Administrative expenses TIER 7 (74,322) (64,346)
Other losses, net E b FE51E 8 (9,014) (8,695)
Operating profit/(loss) EEAF, (E8) 41,678 (2,225)
Finance costs BhE A 9 (10) (707)
Share of profit of an associate P& N a &5 20 3,288 416
Profit/(loss) before income tax MBS HAARN, (BE8) 44,956 (2,516)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTiS® (BR) /% 11 (9,717) 5,643
Profit attributable to NRERFEABLER
equity holders of the Company 12 35,239 3,127
Final dividend proposed after A B Rk
the date of statement
of financial position EOENEEIS 13 1.0 cent —
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic and diluted —HAREE 14 2.2 cents 0.2 cents

The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010

HE_O-—OF=ZA=+—RHILFE

2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OONE
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ET T BT
Profit for the year TERM o ......85239 3,127 .
Other comprehensive income: Hthir ezt -
Net translation differences TBINEIE  [E HFETE
on foreign operations 102 478
Fair value gains/(losses) BREE < R RBEF 2 A FE
on cash flow hedge, net of tax Wz, (E518) 4,863 (22,707)
Total other comprehensive HitamA s, (Bx%)
__income/(expense) 4,95 (22,229)
Total comprehensive income FREEHBWE (X))
/(expense) for the year 40,204 (19,102)
The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these HNE 78 E 130 B2 M RirE M MKRMNEEIH

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRRR

As at 31 March 2010
R-ZO—OF=HA=+—H

2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OONE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3 BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W N 15 27,258 65,218
Deposits, prepayments and other assets A BNEBEALKHMEE 17 34,037 33,018
Interest in an associate i el s o 20 11,315 19,586
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEREE 29 5,327 4,478
e IT,98T 122,300
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 192,440 263,398
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M EIERIA 19 49,944 31,992
Deposits, prepayments and other assets Al BNEALHMEE 17 21,629 17,435
Amount due from an associate JRE Wit & R B FOR 20 12,710 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE 23 315,307 213,275
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 592,030 526,100
Total assets EEHE 669,967 648,400
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBRRE
2010 2009
—O0—-0%f —O0OhHE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B % BET T BT T
EQUITY E=
Capital and reserves attributable AREREEABLRER #E
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital &N 27 162,400 162,400
Reserves fE 28 342,690 302,486
Totalequity ‘me®m 505,090 464,886
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Financial liability at fair BAFESBERLE
value through profit or loss NEmBE 21 3,966 1,394
Deferred income tax liabilities RS AR 29 - 645
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3966 2039
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables FENE SRR ENEE 24 41,440 57,040
Other payables and accruals Hib B RIB R EFTIAR 25 102,835 84,936
Amount due to an associate X NE NI/ 20 - 22,779
Financial derivative liabilities PESBRTIAGE 22 5,380 12,844
Current income tax liabilities KEFTSHARE 11,256 —
Bank borrowings RITER 26 - 3,876
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 160,911 181475
Total liabilities E B85 164,877 183,514
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEAE 669,967 648,400
Net current assets REBEEFE 431,119 344,625
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 509,056 466,925

Stephen T. H. NG
Chairman

RXE

FE

The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Paul Y. C. TSUI
Director
EF
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Company Statement of Financial Position

DA R R R

As at 31 March 2010
R-ZO—OF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—O—0% —OON%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BEEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WENREE 15 2,010 2,637
Interests in subsidiaries TG BT A a) S 18 97,243 97,243
Deposits, prepayments Al ENERAREMEE
and other assets 17 18 461
9921 100,241
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments Al BNEBRALHMEE
and other assets 17 298 360
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT /&8 A B 5RIE 18 315,836 319,798
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 23 1,122 1,137
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 317,256 821,295
Total assets EEHAR 416,527 421,536
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable ARERFEEAEMRAR#E
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 27 162,400 162,400
Reserves it 28 218,133 227,822
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 380,533 890,222
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb eI IRIB R EETIAE R 9,138 4,458
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTFY /& A R 5RIE 18 26,856 26,856
Total liabilites S| ... 8599%4 31814
Total equity and liabilities ERkBERE 416,527 421,536
Net current assets REBEEZRE 281,262 289,981
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 380,533 390,222
Stephen T. H. NG Paul Y. C. TSUI
Chairman Director
RXE RIBR
TE EF
The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these HRE 78 E 130 B 2 AiG 4 B B = B4

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERESHRER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-_O—OF=ZA=Z+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAEREEAEE
Employee
Exchange com-
fluctuation  pensation
Share Share Capital Contributed reserve reserve  Hedging  Retained
capital  premium surplus surplus EXKD 3 reserve profits Total
k& RBEE  ERRR MARH B MeRE  WhEE  2REA g
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[if:: BETR  BETr BRTR AETR BMTr BRTn ABTR BETR BETx
Blanceat 1Apl2009  COONERA-RER 16240 318 T 19196 (1964) 2645 (T78) 166,183 464886
Comprehensive income el
Proft ttbutebl to equiy holders _ BESEABKEAN = T T T - % %
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 24U/ (B%)
Net translation differences on R ERFES -
foreign operations:
- Subsidiaries -HEAH - - - - 98 - - - 9
- Associate -BELT - - - - 4 - - - 4
Cash flow hedges: Remae
- Fair value gains for the year -IEENATERYE - - - - - - 6,095 - 6,095
- Deferred income tax recognised ~FERNERAER 29 - - - - - - (1,232) - (1,232)
Total other comprehensive income _ RMEeRME - T . LS. B T A
Total comprehensive income mOAME T T . T S S
Transactions with owners EEGERAENRA
Employee share option scheme: EEAREL -
- transfer of reserve upon lapse -RARESRAN
| shaeoptions S T T - les) . S
Balance at 31 March 2010 —0-Of=A=1-B&R 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 (1,862) - (2,515) 204,067 505,090
The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these HNE T8 E 130 B M RirE MMM EREIH

financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LYNGL S22 PN
Employee
Exchange com-
fluctuation ~ pensation
Share Share Capital  Contributed reserve reserve Hedging  Retained
capital premium surplus suplis — ERKE €8 reserve profits Total
ke ROEE  E%RER  HARE B MekE  WhRE  2HER Et
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BRI AMTR  BMTn AEBTr AETr BETr BETn BETR BRI
Blanceat 1Apri2008  —OONERA-R&R 16240 378 To___ 19196 eaw) 28 15329 185545 ST
Comprehensive income FakE
Proft etoutale o equiy holders _ BERENRREN o S T T 1L
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Et&Aa M/ (Bx)
Net translation diflerences BEEEAFEE
on foreign operations:
- Subsidiaries ~-HEBLA - - - - 475 - - - 475
- Associate -BEAR - - - - 3 - - - 3
Cash flow hedges: RenBHA:
- Fair value losses for the year -KEERMATEERS - - - - - - (28810) - (28,810)
- Deferred income tax recognised ~ BRI AT 29 - - - - - - 6,103 - 6,103
Total other comprehensive EitpatahE/
ncomelfewpense) R o T o oL T 1.0 N )
Total comprehensive incomel(expense) &£UE/ (B%) - S . Mmoo ledor) st (ede)
Transactions with owners HERRRENR S
Employee share option scheme: B -
- transfer of reserve upon -RARESRAN
lapse of share options i - - - - - (247) - 247 -
Final dividend paid for the year #-00\E=A=+-H
ended 31 March 2008 HEEZEARERE 18 - - - - - - - (22736)  (22.73)
Total ransactions with owners | EHRRERAEARE - S T S A T ) (1%)
Balance at 31 March 2009 —O0ONE=R=t-BER 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 (1,964) 2,645 (7,378) 166,183 464,886
The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these HNET8E 130 B2 M Rire MK HmERNERIN

financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-_O—OF=ZA=Z+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRRERERAEY
Employee
compensation
Share Share  Contributed reserve Retained
capital premium surplus = profits Total
BA RipaE FPN He 2REA k]
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HizE BRI BRI BETT BETR BRI BRI

Balance at 1 Apri 2009 —OOAFMA-BEE - 162400 3728 19375 2645 62074 . 390222
Comprehensive expense RERX
Loss attroutable to equiy holders  BmHEAREEE - T R R ) B )
Transactions with owners HEGEEENRS
Employee share option scheme: ~ [EEAMiE: 2 -

- transfer of reserve upon ~ERRERR LN
... lapseof share options 1 mEEEE T o (2645) 2646 -
Balance at 31 March 2010 Z0—-0f=A=1+—B#&k 162,400 3,728 159,375 - 55,030 380,533
Balance at 1 April 2008 —OONFMA-BEE - 162400 378 19985 28%2 49495 ¢ 37850
Comprehensive income meks
Proft attributable to equity holders EESAAEEERH - T T e 3,108 3,108
Transactions with owners HREBEENRS
Employee share option scheme:  (BERMIE: 12 :

- transfer of reserve upon ~ERRERR LN

lapse of share options [t - - - (247) 247 -

Final dividend paid for the year

ended 31 March 2008 BENRERE 13 - - - - (22,736) (22,736)
Total transactions with owners = 2BREELHENRS - T T lan) (eadsy)  (22736)
Balance at 31 March 2009 ZOONF=RA=1—B#&E 162,400 3728 159,375 2,645 62,074 390,222
The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these HNE T8 E 130 B M RirE MMM EREIH

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HE-_O—OF=ZA=Z+—HILFE

2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OONE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & B¥ET T BT
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNESRE
Cash generated from operations EEEANES (a) 104,909 13,712
Interest paid BRHE (10) (707)
Interest received BUFE 441 3,929
Income tax paid ERAEH (1,187) (1,105)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% ,/EEEAH)FIRE 104,153 15,829
Cash flows from investing activities RETENRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE ¥ - ME M&iE (10,557) (36,307)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BERZBTEHIE
plant and equipment 703 1,112
Dividend income from an associate B N B FTEE 2 IR B 11,563 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEEE, (FTR) FHe
investing activities 1,709 (35,195)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETENRERE
Dividend paid BERRE - (22,736)
(Decrease)/increase in bank borrowings FITERZ ORd) (3,876) 3,876
Net cash used in financing activities BERBAFRS (3,876) (18,860)
Increase/(decrease) in cash BERBLEEER
and cash equivalents #hn, GRd) 101,986 (38,226)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ME 3 I8 B R
changes, net 46 372
Cash and cash equivalents at REP 2R R
beginning of year ReHEER 213,275 251,129
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXZEL RIS SEER 315,307 213,275
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRRSEEERLEEIW
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRE 23 233,931 105,085
Short-term bank deposits FEERIRTTIF K 28 81,376 108,190
315,307 213,275

The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBERER

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH eRERERME
FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to cash (a) HEERF (FE) HEETHHRELENRSYR

generated from operations

2010 2009
—0—-0% —OO0Oh%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Operating profit/(loss) SRR (FBB) 41,678 (2,225)
Interest income FLEWA (441) (3,929)
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BB REETE
and equipment 27,617 32,962
Impairment charge of property, Yz - BEMEERE
plant and equipment 7,705 9,919
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWME - REREEZ
plant and equipment &8 (&F) 12,544 (1,070)
Write back of provision for unfulfilled 7R B 1THERES #1144 [0 ¢
purchase commitment (1,263) (2,773)
Net cost of transferring shares in HERHRZER QGG 2R AFEE
jointly controlled entity - 3,931
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BATES BB :.EEEE’J%F&EELL
liability at fair value through ZATHEEE, (W
profit or loss 2,572 (2,382)
Operating profit before working LBEECEHH EERT
capital changes 90,412 34,433
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE2®L, (Em) 69,589 (22,184)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 R EAMEWRIE
other receivables (gm) Ed (17,952) 17,170
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e BNERALREMEEC
prepayments and other assets (gm) JEd (5,213) 12,447
Decrease in trade and bills payables BB SRBRIENZIE 2R (15,600) (13,663)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E@EHE‘EIE&[EJIEE Z
and accruals #hn, ()DZ 19,162 (6,184)
Decrease in amount due to an FETH & N A IE'Z/W'J\
associate (35,489) (8,307)
Cash generated from operations EEELNRE 104,909 13,712

30 AZMERERA M MARNEEEN

The notes on pages 78 to 130 are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

2.1

P F AR MY AL

GENERAL INFORMATION

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
sales of designer fashion garments, cosmetics and
accessories.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. The
Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 14 July 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied for all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The assumptions and estimates that are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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B 5 R 2R B o
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
new standards, amendments to and interpretations of
existing standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are relevant
to the Group’s business and effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share - based Payment -
vesting conditions and
cancellations

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Operating Segments

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of
income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in
equity’) in the statement of changes in equity, requiring
‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented separately
from owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result, the Group presents in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner
changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Comparative information has been
re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the revised
standard. Since the change in accounting policy only
impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments —
Disclosures”. The amendment requires enhanced disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In particular,
the amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only results in
additional disclosures, there is no impact on earnings per
share.

FERHBE (&)

mBEE (&)

SERNANEFERAT TIR-_OONFMA—HXK
Z&Rte 2 &5t BRE B EIT 2 FERA R EIRTT
R ER] Rt g

EREETERIE 198
(#&4&5T)

BB FETERIZE 23 58
(#1838T)

BEM IS HRE %R
F25 (BETX)

MBRER 22
EEKA

VAR 0 I B 2 3R
— BB R MR

BB TSRS A SRITE : HE
F7% (BETR)

BB SRS 2R £ B
% 85%

&% (BBEBRE FPAHE
ZEZET)

— R EBE 135

FEGTENE 1 (BER]) [MBRRZ2
| o WEKERIERIZE W EREEHRR 25K
ARFXIER (A [FEE A AEmZS]) @ UE
K [PEHBE AR TS | EHEE AT E D
MATREEBERT 2 - Bt - ARESAAE
BENEREP 2D NG RRBERRA - M
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RZBHECHEHRINEE - AT ENEBRE
MEBRTE -
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1
HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments”. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS

14, “Segment reporting”. It requires a “management

approach” under which segment information is presented on

the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.

The Group has applied HKFRS 8 from 1 April 2009 with no

impact on the number of reportable segments and the

manner in which the segments are reported.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes”.
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 addresses accounting by entities that
grant loyalty awards credits (such as “points”) to customers
who buy other goods or services. Specificially, it explains
how such entities should account for their obligations to
provide free or discounted goods or services (“awards”) to
customers who redeem award credits. The Group has
applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 from 1 April 2009 retrospectively,
the adoption of which has no significant impact to the profit
for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the consolidated
statements of financial position for the previous years.

The adoptions of the other new standards, amendments to
and interpretations of existing standards have no material
impact to the financial statements.

The following amendments to and interpretations of existing
standards are effective for the year ended 31 March 2010
but are not relevant to the Group’s operations.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendment)

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010
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B 5 R 2R B o
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

The following new standards, amendments to and
interpretations of existing standards have been published
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2010 or later periods, but the
Group has not early adopted.

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

HKAS 24 (Amendment)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 9

HK(FRIC) — Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 19

Transfers of Assets from
Customers

Related Party Disclosures*
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements’
Classification of Right Issues?
Eligible Hedged Items'’

Business Combinations®
Financial Instruments®
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirment*
Distributions of Non-cash Assets

to Owners’

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new
standards, amendments to and interpretations of existing
standards to the consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 March.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Associate 2.3
Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity

method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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P F AR MY EE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
Associate (Continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associate have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Segment reporting 2.4
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers. The chief operating decision-makers, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the top management that makes strategic
decisions.
Foreign currency translation 2.5
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of

the Group’s entities are measured using the currency

of the primary economic environment in which the

entity operates (the “functional currency”). The

consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional

and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year- end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges.

(b)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the costs of items of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Over the lease term
3 to 6 years
4 years

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associate and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. Derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments are classified as financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(Continued)

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of
highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedge). The
Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 22. Movements on the
hedging reserve in other comprehensive income are shown
in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The full
fair value of hedging derivative is classified as a non -
current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedge item is more than 12 months, and as a current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item
is less than 12 months.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in hedging reserve. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts accumulated in hedging reserve are recycled in the
consolidated income statement in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss. However, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory), the gains
and losses previously deferred in hedging reserve are
transferred from hedging reserve and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred
amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of inventories in
case of inventory.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in hedging reserve at
that time remains in hedging reserve and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was reported in hedging reserve is immediately
transferred to the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(Continued)

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchases, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from hedging reserve of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of
merchandises for resale.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of 3 months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the date of statement of
financial position.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity.
In this case, tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of
statement of financial position in the countries where the
Company, its subsidiaries and associate operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the date of statement
of financial position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provision are not recognised for future operating
losses. The Group makes provision on onerous contracts
when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under a contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from it.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the date of
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Bonus plan
Provision for bonus plan is recognised where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension schemes (c)
The Group operates the following principal defined
contribution pension schemes:

Defined contribution schemes

Contributions to the schemes are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds.

Mandatory provident funds

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance are charged to the
consolidated income statement when incurred.

The Group also participates in the employee pension
schemes operated by the municipal governments of
various cities in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). The municipal governments are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group is to pay
the ongoing required contribution under these
schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payment once
the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Long service payments (d)
The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts

payable on cessation of employment in certain

circumstances under the employment law of the

respective countries in which the Group operates is

the amount of future benefit that employees have

earned in return for their services in the current and

prior periods.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Long service payments (Continued) (d)
Long service payments are assessed using the

projected unit credit method. The cost of providing the

long service payment liabilities is charged to the

consolidated income statement so as to spread the

cost over the service lives of employees in accordance

with the advice of the actuaries.

Long service payments are discounted to determine
the present value of obligation and reduced by
entitlement accrued under the Group’s defined
contribution plans that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised over the average remaining service lives of
employees. Past service costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

Share-based compensation (e)
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value - added tax, returns, rebates, discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group company
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are
usually settled in cash or by credit card.

Sales of goods that resulted in award credits for
customers are accounted for as multiple element
revenue transactions and the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated
between the goods sold and the award credits
granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to their fair values,
taking into the account the fair value of the products
for which award credits could be redeemed. Such
consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time
of the initial sale transaction, but is deferred and
recognised as revenue upon the expiration or
redemption of award credits.

Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a group company
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line accrual
basis over the terms of lease agreement.

Management fee and commission income
Management fee and commission income is
recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Receipts or payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives paid to lessee
or received from the lessor) are recognised as income or
expense in the consolidated income statement on the
straight - line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s directors or shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it mainly to foreign exchange
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and the
PRC, and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the Euro dollars (“Euro”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and
United States dollars (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Exposure to movements in exchange rates on
individual transactions of the Group denominated in
Euro is minimised using forward foreign exchange
contracts where active markets exist.

The Group’s risk management policy is to hedge all
highly probable transactions in Euro, provided that the
cost of the foreign exchange forward or derivative
contract is not prohibitively expensive in comparison to
the underlying exposure.

As the Group has effectively hedged against Euro for
both years, the Group is exposed to minimal foreign
exchange risk against Euro.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2010, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 2% (2009: 2%) against the RMB with
all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit (2009:
pre-tax loss) would have been HK$108,000 higher/
lower (2009: HK$143,000 lower/higher), arising mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB - denominated trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2010 if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 0.5% (2009: 0.5%) against the USD
with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit
(2009: pre-tax loss) for the year would have been
HK$327,000 higher/lower (2009: HK$433,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD-denominated bank
deposits and trade payables.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Credit risk is managed on a group
basis and individual basis. Credit risk arises from
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

Impairment provisions are made for losses that have
been incurred at the date of statement of financial
position. The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties including the
deposits-takers and debtors and by diversification.
Deposits are placed only with major and sizeable
banks approved by the Board from time to time and
there was no significant concentration risk to a single
counterparty. The Group mitigates its exposure to risks
relating to trade receivable by its established
procedures in granting credit only to customers with
sound credit track records. Sales to retail customers
are settled in cash or using major credit cards. No
credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.
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EREBRER (&)
THEBER (8)

(i)

(ii)

IMERBE (1E)
MR-ZO—OFE=ZA=+—H  MBEILAR
RS E,/ FAE2% (ZOONE 1 2%) W
FrEEMmEAEEFTE - AREAAER (=
OONF : BRATEIR) #5180, B
108,000 7t (ZOONF : B /i
143,0007T) @ TEHRBENUARELAE
{7 9 JE U BR TR BT S A 2 B 5 U es B 1B o
R-ZO—OFf=A=+—H

B218 FHE 0.5% (
TR 8 B AL R & A R

AR H 3T
“OONEF 1 05%)
CAFEBRTATR

A (ZOONE : BRFEipIERE) BeEm/
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3.1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the financial assets of the
Group that were exposed to credit risk and their
maximum exposure were as follows:

3
3.1

31 March 2010
—O—-Of=HA=+—H

ERMERER (&)
THEBEE (&)

(ii)

=ERR (B)
RZO—OF=RA=+—H XEEEAZ
FEERBIVBEERBBMBEEZ &S
2T

31 March 2009
—OONhF=A=+—H

Carrying Carrying
amount in amount in
statement Maximum statement Maximum
of financial exposure to of financial ~ exposure to
position  credit risk position credit risk
REBRREK ZAERZIZEES RUBHKRRIE BAERZ
ZEREE FERRE ZEHE seEERR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT BT BETT BETT
Financial assets: MG EE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFMEIER 315,307 314,540 213,275 212,579
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWARE 49,944 49,944 31,992 31,992
Deposits and other assets AleMHMEE 54,632 54,632 48,518 48,518
Amount due from an associate  JEULHEL N F)FRIE 12,710 12,710 — —
Liquidity risk (iii) FBELER

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as and when they fall due, and it
results from amount and maturity mismatches of
assets and liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the working capital of
the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for
contingency purposes. The Group had aggregate
borrowing facilities of approximately HK$233,000,000
as at 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$233,000,000).
Borrowing facilities utilised as at 31 March 2010
amounted to approximately HK$26,327,000 (2009:
HK$14,774,000). The banking facilities were secured
by corporate guarantees from the Company.

MEESRERAE S REEMNBIBEE 2R
B REERBRBZSBERFHERATE -
EERDECRREEAIEEFEHNIR
& BRENCA#EEBRREVAMNE
& REENERTHAAM - AEEFEHTE
RS ROMEREERE - FAABBRAT
TREHBEREEAEB I EEEAS  UE
REENABIHEERENESE K - 11t
SN IRITEE R EEERARRR - RO —
OF=RA=+—H AEBZAIHHBEERL
B4 57815 233,000,000 T (ZOORE 8
¥ 233,000,000 L) c R=—O—OF=ZA=
+— B EHANEELBHNAEEKE
26,327,000 (ZOONF : B
14,774,000 7t) ° RITEEUARAR ZFE
ERIERE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SmERREER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.1 e@EREE (8)
(i) FEBELEE (&)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TRETAEBEANIEBEE—FUTHH
which have contractual maturities less than 1 year. wafkE-

Less than 1 year

—FUF
2010 2009
—O0—-0O% ZOON%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills payable ENESERERENEE 41,440 57,040
Other payables and accruals HAb e ARIE R EETIE B 92,346 75,302
Amount due to an associate FETE & N R RIR - 22,779
Bank borrowings RITER - 3,876
Total #ER 133,786 158,997
The table below analyses the Group’s derivative TRERAEBESOIHE R —FUTHIT
financial instruments which have contractual maturities FeRIE LBEIRNEEZEHEZ
less than 1 year. The gross settlement contracts ATBEBEERALRERAT

require undiscounted contractual cash inflows and

outflows as follows:

Less than 1 year

—FBT
HK$’000
BET T
At 31 March 2010 —O—O0O%=A=+—H”
Forward foreign exchange contracts REINEE K
- cash flow hedges: —REmELH
Inflows —mA 186,122
Outflows — it (190,475)
At 31 March 2009 —OOhF=A=+—H
Forward foreign exchange contracts REINEE K
- cash flow hedges: —REmEE A
Inflows —mA 77,182
Outflows —m (90,026)
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3

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates, except for the interest income derived from bank
deposits. As at 31 March 2010, if interest rates on the
bank deposits had been 10 basis points (2009: 100
basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit (2009: pre-tax loss) for the
year would have been HK$315,000 higher/lower (2009:
HK$2,126,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on bank deposits. Apart
from the bank deposits, the Group has no significant
interest bearing assets or liabilities.

3.2 Capital risk management

97

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets.

3
3.1

3.2

eRmEEE (&)
EMERERE (&)
(iv) ﬁﬁmsf/—?‘—?ﬁlﬁ%

BameE N XRELBE TS X mEH
TRITEZRRBL RS 2R - BR2RA
IRITERZ FBHASN - REE 2 WA T
EREREBAMIINSNEEHTE - &
—O—0O%=RA=t+—8" TE“?E?‘TT 7l

gt KT 10E2 (ZOOAEF 100 &
) MABEMEESEFTE  ARFE

BB AIRF (ZOONF : REIRIERE)

eGSR A E R 315,000 (ZOO R
ir“l/i“nuzmeoooﬁ) CEEZRA
TEZFBEWAZIEI, D o BRIRTTE

= 9\\ AEBYEEB A EEESAE -

HEARER
AEBHES BRI - SRBEELEESE
SR SR 4 Bl SR A EL A S 5 A SR8
FR 45 B 0B A A LURE B SR -

REEEGE Rins REREREE - HREDR
BRNEARBRRRLOR BT - XEEZEE
MWERFE : AEBBROERTRKEERYE -
BRI RFEHz BRgE S - AR EER SN - B
BEAMXRIEMRBIRERESS -

BT REFRFRERGERE  AEEREEH
TEROREESHE  BRREEZES
HHEEE -

AR
BITHAR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation

Effective 1 April 2009, the Group adopted the amendment
to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in
the statement of financial position at fair value. This requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The Group did not have any financial assets that are
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010. The following
table presents the Group’s financial liabilities that were

EREBRER (&)

AF{E

H-OONF—A—RE  AEBERNE B BR
HFEAE 7 RBERASR TAEVBRARIRAFE
STEMEET - ERTER T IAHEFERER

FEHE

s

B (REHE)

F-E- BRTIF-EMERENOREN

SN

ERUN

F—E- HREEREBEERRERTSHNR

HBE

MEENABRNEGEA  IRE
& (BpImER) E% (AREE

f&)

FZE- BEIRBAUFKRBEIBEETHEHE
MEA (BIFERBRBA)

RZO—OF=ZRA=+—H  REENHIEAREK
NIDRFEMPBEEARNFERE - TRERA
SENFBEEER_O-—OF=ZA=1+T—HEM

measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010. DA -
Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB BB s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BET T BET T
Liabilities afE
Financial derivative liabilities ESBRIABE 5,380 — 5,380
Financial liability at fair value BAFESRE
through profit or loss malRM R R AE — 3,966 3,966
Total k] 5,380 3,966 9,346
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in RATERMSEENSRTANATEFNRMGE

an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data. The instrument is included in level
3.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
liabilities include:

()  The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
was determined using forward exchange rates at the
date of statement of financial position, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

(i) Binomial model was adopted to measure the net fair
value of the call and put options which required the
assessment of the fair market value of the equity
interest of Marni (Hong Kong) Limited. Fair market
value of the equity interest of Marni (Hong Kong)
Limited was determined by the income approach with
the use of free cash flows to equity in discounted
cash flow method.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, deposits and other assets and amount due
from an associate; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals and amount due to an associate, approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment exhibit any indications of impairment.
The recoverable amounts are determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use of
judgments and estimates. Management believes that
any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above
key elements in the value-in-use calculation would not
result in material additional impairment charges.

(b) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

(c) Provision for inventories
The Group makes provision for inventories based on
an assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories. Provision for inventories is recorded where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying cost of inventories will not be fully realised.
The quantification of inventory provisions requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the outcomes
are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories
and provisions for inventories in the years in which
such estimates have been changed.

(d) Fair value of financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss
The fair value of a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss that is not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. The fair value derived from these valuation
techniques is based on a number of assumptions. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the fair value
determined and the amount recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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B g Rk MY
TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 BEERSBEH
The Group is principally engaged in sales of designer REEFZREAIERE  (biim RECHHE - F
fashion garments, cosmetics and accessories. Turnover NEEBHERWNT -
recognised during the year are as follows:
2010 2009
—O—-0O%f —O0OhF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Sale of goods EmiHE 1,063,776 979,953
The Group determines its operating segments based on the EIE@E%&% EIREEZRI ARGIET RS ER
reports reviewed by the top management who makes KRR EEELEDE -
strategic decisions.
The top management assesses the business by geographic BARERE AR AE R EER - MEERR
location, the reportable operating segments identified are MELEN P WMEFFEKRE BEREMT
Hong Kong, Mainland China and other markets. 15 °
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each DBAFIES AR A ERAREER - B
segment before finance cost, tax and share of profit of an B RFTREE A B ABF - WAl EEERSRE
associate. This is the measurement basis reported to the BEERMMEE R B R E D ERIB A o
top management for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment turnover and LA EERFARMIE D HMEl DG EE RS
operating profit/(loss) by geographical location is as follows: *Iﬁéﬂ FITSI AT
2010
—O0—-0O%
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B H Hity wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BETT BT BT
Turnover ] 912,445 151,007 324 1,063,776
Operating profit/(loss) 2XRN, (BR) 42,976 307 (1,605) 41,678
Finance costs BLE AR (10)
Share of profit of an associate Firfh & A &) & F 3,288
Profit before income tax IR 44,956
Income tax expense Frisfi &R (9,717)
Profit attributable to equity holders — #Ezi#H A BIREF 35,239
Other segment information Hith o 2B E R}
Segment capital expenditures DEBE AR 10,423 134 - 10,557
Segment depreciation of property, DEIEE - B
plant and equipment LR fETE 24,589 3,028 — 27,617
Segment impairment charge of ﬁ%ﬁ%% 5
property, plant and equipment HERE 6,543 1,162 - 7,705

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5
The top management manages the assets from geographic
location perspective. Assets of reportable segments exclude
interest in an associate, amount due from an associate and
deferred income tax assets, of which are managed on a
central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude
amount due to an associate, deferred and current income
tax liabilities.

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment assets by
geographical location is as follows:

EXERSBEH (B)

SRERE MR AERERDMEE - AHWR
i”\*BE’JéFTE%EPE’%EES'EE’JEAH‘J?EQTE’HE
£ JRUEEE R R RIR SR IEFTS %Ré? BRE®
%ﬁ*BE’J’EFTE%JEHHﬁ%@ B RERA
HIFFIS B

LA EBRFRIRE D BME DN BERE®RE D
BEE T

2010
—O—0O%

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

&8 E Hit M

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BET T BET T BET T

Segment assets HEEE 564,595 74,987 1,033 640,615
Unallocated: RHOBLEE :

Amount due from an associate JE U & | 5 12,710

Interest in an associate RS R RIS 11,315

Deferred income tax assets FEFTSREE 5,327

Total assets BEMRTE 669,967

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment liabilities by
geographical location is as follows:

ZHEAEERENZIE S MBS NWBERERE S
EEImAT

2010
—O—0%

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

E FE Hity Fob]

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BET T BET T BET T

Segment liabilities DEEE 134,051 18,394 1,176 153,621
Unallocated: AOoEE :

Current income tax liabilities KEFERAE 11,256

Total liabilities afERsE 164,877
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Analysis of the Group’s reportable segment turnover and
operating profit/(loss) by geographical location is as follows:

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

ﬁ‘#ﬁ&ﬁ"ﬂﬁﬁ (%)
B AEB —OONFRIZE D B mE D eE R
%E&’\*Béﬂ DATFIL AT -

2009
—O0Oh%F

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

H5 H = HAtb Rk

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT BT BT

Turnover X 832,034 146,987 932 979,953

Operating profit/(loss) EERN, (E8) 33,053 (33,465) (1,813) (2,225)

Finance costs RbE R AR (707)

Share of profit of an associate Frii Bt 2 21 & A 416

Loss before income tax BRI AIEE (2,516)

Income tax credit FriSfiiE % 5,643

Profit attributable to equity holders #5558 AEEEF 3,127

Other segment information o s &k

Segment capital expenditures DEHERMFREZ 32,331 3,976 — 36,307
Segment depreciation of property, DEE - BE

plant and equipment KRBT E 25,226 7,736 — 32,962
Segment impairment charge of DEWE - WE

property, plant and equipment REERE 723 9,196 — 9,919

An analysis of the Group’s reportable
geographical location is as follows:

segment assets by

LA EE —OONF R BMEIDHH
WEDEEI AT

2009
—OON%EF

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

B FREY Hih 4a%E

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T BT BT

Segment assets DEEE 541,613 81,769 954 624,336
Unallocated: AOBEE :

Interest in an associate REEE N RIAER 19,586

Deferred income tax assets EEFTSIREE 4,478

Total assets BERRE 648,400
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment liabilities by

geographical location is as follows:

5 EXERSBEH (&)

A EE —OONFARLMIE D MBI DK H

HEDHAGEI AT -

2009
—OON%EF

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

BE L Efb 4R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ST ST T ST T BT T

Segment liabilities DEEE 123,544 34,552 1,994 160,090
Unallocated: AOoEE :

Amount due to an associate JE{BS R R FRE 22,779

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEHEaE 645

Total liabilities BEeRE 183,514

6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hehlg A

2010 2009

—O0-0#% —OOh%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Interest income MBI A 441 3,929

Management fee income B RIS WA 2,318 1,965

Consignment commission FiEEe 1,722 2,336

Rental income el A 1,350 —

Sample and sundry sales St IR E 947 2,121

6,778 10,351
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MR R M
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BHER
2010 2009
—O—-0#% —O0On®F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories (including provision fF&EA (BIEFEEE)
for inventories) 570,646 551,924
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BERERETE
and equipment 27,617 32,962
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFZEEHERS
land and buildings
- minimum lease payments —EBEENH 173,803 182,968
- contingent rents — s RS 21,840 23,196
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN I & 1,000 1,213
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment B (&R 12,544 (1,070
Net exchange losses/(gains) b X &R S5 514 (1,290)
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA (BREESH
remuneration (Note 10)) —M7E10))
Wages and salaries T & K& 122,526 113,951
Pension costs — defined contribution IRIRE A — A TEHRET S
schemes 6,053 5,901
128,579 119,852
Other expenses HEmEA 83,319 74,079
1,019,862 983,834
OTHER LOSSES, NET 8 Ht2EHR
2010 2009
—O—-0#% —O0On%®F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Impairment charge of property, W% - WERERERE
plant and equipment 7,705 9,919
Net cost of transferring shares in EEARZRA ARG
jointly controlled entity (Note 20) ZBAFEE (PIEE20) - 3,931
Write back of provision for RIEITH SRS AR A [
unfulfilled purchase commitment (1,263) (2,773)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAFEEBERLE
liability at fair value HMEmBE 2 AT EEE
through profit or loss (Note 21) (Wezm) (MEE21) 2,572 (2,382)
9,014 8,695
FINANCE COSTS 9 MERE
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON#EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts  R1TEFGE X HIF & 10 707

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’s

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of every director for the year ended

31 March 2010 are set out below:

10 EEREREEARMS

(a) E=E#Me

HE_O—OF=A=+—HLFERARE

ENMESFHIIMT

Discretionary

bonuses

Salaries, and/or

allowances performance- Pension

and benefits related scheme 2010 2009
in kind bonuses contributions Total Total
Name of Director Fee  #¢ 2 FEMR/GE B¢ —O0-0f —OONE
ES=ER we  REWEN EEMEMEA AR &g B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETR BETR BETR BT
Mr. Antonio Chani# PREZEL L - 45 - - 45 45

# An independent non-executive director

Except for the director as disclosed above, no other
directors of the Company received any emoluments for
the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010.

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to
directors of the Company during the year are as

# BIIFNITES

HE-_OONER-ZO—OF=A=+—H

EE - R EAMSINESS

H b E =W EEATBNE -

FARRRENNESHSREIANT

follows:
Group
|
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
. s S
Other emoluments: E A REN -
Salaries, allowances e ERREYEN
and benefits in kind 45 45
Pension scheme contributions RIREEIEIHR - —
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 45
45 45
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P F AR MY EE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid employees

(b)

The five employees whose emoluments were the

TEHREFMES

10 EEREKETEARME (£)

FALEREHH2EEYEESE (Z0O0

highest in the Group for the year include no directors NE &)  EMemFRBE s XXM
(2009: nil), details of whose emoluments are set out in 10a) ° BE% (ZOONE : Af) S
Note 10(a) above. Emoluments payable to the 5 (2009: EBEZMELT -
5) highest paid employees during the year are as
follows:
Group
58
2010 2009
—O—-0% —O0ONHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Salaries, allowances e - A
and benefits in kind LEYRF 7,011 7,150
Discretionary bonuses and/or FEREME SR A
performance- related bonuses MmEAIFEAL 1,414 677
Pension scheme contributions RIS TSR 283 309
8,708 8,136

The emoluments of the highest paid employees fell
within the following bands:

SEFHERZMEMAMT

Number of employees

EBEAE

2010 2009
—0—-0% —OO0Oh%E

Bands %l
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & T2 1,500,000 &JT 4 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & T2 2,000,000 &JT - —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & T = 2,500,000 % JT - —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t & 3,000,000 BT - —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & T2 3,500,000 & JT - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & JT 2 4,000,000 BT 1 —
5 5

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year ended 31 March 2009 as the Group has no estimated

assessable profit.

No provision for overseas profits tax has been made as the
Group has no estimated assessable profit in the current

year (2009: Nil).

11 MSRER B

OheF : &) -

BBITSH ORI F E 5 R A B AR X
16.6% REEM - AR AKERNHE_OONF=
A=t+—H L FEWEES AL ERREAN -
B bt 3 428 54 B A5 A5 4 H A () 384 -

A AN R BN AN R 2 3 A A AR (A I ER A/ S
&7 - B SN S B EL EAEE (ZO
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/CREDIT (Continued) 11 FRBEREBR B (&)
(a)  The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the consolidated @ e kEmEANk (GEA) MBESE
income statement represents: V=
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON#EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong profits tax BANEHR 11,850 —
— Current income tax —RERFT S - -
— Under/(over)provision — AR FERED
in prior years 1], (=) & 593 (8,230)
Deferred income tax (Note 29) IRIEFTSEL (FIFE29) (2,726) 2,587
9,717 (5,643)
(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income b) AEEBHERBRAIET (BE) 2HEHA
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise RAEBRNSHREMTE 2 BwmBiEs =
using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows: MR
2010 2009
—0—-0% —OO0Oh%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BERIEF, (E58) 44,956 (2,516)
Calculated at a taxation #16.5% MEHE 2HIA
rate of 16.5% (2009:16.5%) (ZOONEF 1 16.5%) 7,418 (415)
Effect of different taxation HAB B R [RIT X
rate in other country k7% (188) (2,619)
Effect of share of profit of Fri Bt R B & A
an associate pd-Z (542) (69)
Expenses not deductible A% 2 S H
for taxation purpose 4,054 7,114
Income not subject to taxation FTEE S d N (434) (1,601)
Effect of tax losses unrecognised RIERERFEIB 2 FE 2,020 2,019
Utilisation of unrecognised tax FRNFERBER
losses of previous years < FERT S8 (1,582) (4,323)
Recognition of previously ERFAARER
unrecognised temporary ZRREEE
differences (338) 1,878
Under/(over)provision in prior years AEFEEBENE, (&) (& 593 (8,230)
Effect of change in tax rates MERENTE - 246
Others Ht (1,284) 357
Income tax expense/(credit) FSRER, (Ex) 9,717 (5,643)
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MR R M
LOSS/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 12 HaBBsAEEEE 28
The loss attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the I B AE(GEIE A5 9,689,000 T (ZOON
financial statements of the Company to the extent of @ BFEE 35,108,000 7T) Bt AR RERIE
HK$9,689,000 (2009: profit of HK$35,108,000). A o
DIVIDEND 13 BB
2010 2009
—O0—0% —OONHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Final, proposed, of 1.0 Hong Kong cent R - #RALS — ZBAREREE 1.010
(2009: Nil) per ordinary share (ZOON%F :+ &) 16,240 —

At a meeting held on 14 July 2010, the directors proposed
a final dividend of 1.0 Hong Kong cent per ordinary share
(2009: Nil).

The proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 31
March 2010.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders for the year
of HK$35,239,000 (2009: HK$3,127,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,624,000,000 (2009:
1,624,000,000) shares in issue during the year.

As the exercise price of the Company’s share options were
higher than the average market price of the Company’s
ordinary shares during the year ended 31 March 2009 and
2010, the share options have no dilutive effect on the
earnings per share. As at 31 March 2010, there was no
outstanding share option.

14

RZO—OFtA+THRABTTZzEZ L EFE2
BRERFLEFEEE 1.0 (ZOONF -
&) o

SRR LS AR N AT B IHRER N E (ERAAE -
HR2IRBE-_O—OF=A=+—HILFEZ
REBEH D °

SERER

BREAZBFNIZSFERFEB ARGRREE
35,239,000 7t (ZOO NS : B# 3,127,000 JT)
MRFN—EHEB T 1,624,000,000 % (ZO
O+ 1,624,000,000 A% ) & 38 I% HniE 7 14 81 i
iTE -

HRARRERHNZBREZTEERADRER
BRERTERERS  WRARELELSBE—O
ONEZO—OF=A=+—HILFERNETRE
FEREMEETE - R-_O—O0F=A=+—
B R ORI TE AR AR o

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% -BERRME

Group
58
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor
HEME T £E vehicles Total
%% ET ] AE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
Year ended 31 March 2009 —OONE=A=+—H
Opening net book value HERmEE 41,316 30,098 316 71,730
Additions RE 20,048 16,259 — 36,307
Disposals/write-off HE sy (15) 27) — (42)
Depreciation weE (18,840) (13,976) (146) (32,962)
Impairment charge RIE (8,931) (988) - (9,919)
Exchange differences i = 90 14 - 104
Closing net book value HYARBRESHE 33,668 31,380 170 65,218
At 31 March 2009 —OONE=A=+—H
Cost %N 113,471 114,036 1,286 228,793
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE
and impairment K& (79,803) (82,656) (1,116) (163,575)
Net book value RESFE 33,668 31,380 170 65,218
Year ended 31 March 2010 —O—0O%=A=+—H
Opening net book value HYRRESE 33,668 31,380 170 65,218
Additions NE 5,191 5,366 - 10,557
Disposals/write-off HE s (6,158) (7,089) - (13,247)
Depreciation e (14,496) (13,004) (117) (27,617)
Impairment charge RIE (4,203) (3,502) — (7,705)
Exchange differences bEE 5 2 7E 46 6 — 52
Closing net book value HABRE HE 14,048 13,157 53 27,258
At 31 March 2010 —O—-OfF=ZA=+—H
Cost BXAS 74,166 88,894 1,010 164,070
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
and impairment Kom{E (60,118) (75,737) (957) (136,812)
Net book value REEE 14,048 13,157 53 27,258
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The directors have reviewed the carrying values of assets
and an impairment charge of HK$7,705,000 (2009:
HK$9,919,000) was made against the property, plant and
equipment of certain retail shops. The carrying values of
assets exceeded their recoverable amounts which were
determined based on the value-in-use of relevant assets
estimated by directors as at 31 March 2010 and 2009,

111

respectively.

15 BV¥ BERRE (&)
EFCHEENRRERTHGIT AT EERHNE
BEERAESE ALAETZEEHOYE K
BN EELEAB 7,705,000 (—OON
F 1 9,919,000L) c RZOONK=0—0
F=ZA=1+—H EENREEYBBZESIE
FAEEENT R EEE -

Company
A A
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment
HEWE E Total
#is L wEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March 2009 —OOhF=R=+—H
Opening net book value BRIER M FE 1,287 803 2,090
Additions NE 568 791 1,359
Depreciation e (343) (569) 912)
Closing net book value B4R ER T FE 1,512 1,025 2,537
At 31 March 2009 —OOhFE=ZA=+—H
Cost AR 13,854 18,386 32,240
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (12,342) (17,361) (29,703)
Net book value AREFE 1,512 1,025 2,537
Year ended 31 March 2010 —O—OF=A=+—H
Opening net book value HAWIEREDFE 1,512 1,025 2,537
Additions NE 129 961 1,090
Disposal/write-off HE s (505) — (505)
Depreciation e (467) (645) (1,112)
Closing net book value B BREDFE 669 1,341 2,010
At 31 March 2010 —O—OF=A=+—H
Cost AR 2,192 19,347 21,539
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,523) (18,0086) (19,529)
Net book value BRMEFE 669 1,341 2,010
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

16 RERNSHMBIA

Group
&5
Loans and receivables
BERRERR
2010 2009
—O0—0fF —O0ON%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
Assets as per consolidated FREMBMRRRAT
statement of financial position ZEE
Trade and other receivables g 5 REAMEWARIE 49,944 31,992
Deposits and other assets Al hHMEE 54,632 48,518
Amount due from an associate JE LB & A B 5RIE 12,710 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEBEIAE 315,307 213,275
Total ik 432,593 293,785
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 16 BREBERIISHMBIR (&)
Group
Liability at
fair value
through  Derivatives Other
profit or loss used for financial
BEAYE hedging liabilities
BEBRE REHHH Hitb i % Total
ERNaE fTEIR afE M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BET T BETRT
Liabilities as per FEMBEMRRE
consolidated statement fimzafE
of financial position
At 31 March 2010 ZO—O0O%=A=+—H
Trade and bills payable BB ZRBERENEE - - 41,440 41,440
Other payables and accruals ~ EH#hfERERIA R EZTIEE - — 92,346 92,346
Financial derivative liabilities TESBMTAARE - 5,380 - 5,380
Financial liability at fair value RN FEFBIERLE
through profit or loss WeRaE 3,966 - - 3,966
Total BE 3,966 5,380 133,786 143,132
At 31 March 2009 ZOOh&E=A=+—H
Trade and bills payable BB ZRBRENEE - - 57,040 57,040
Other payables and accruals — E#hERBRIE M EFTIAR - - 75,302 75,302
Amount due to an associate  JE[TEES AT FIE - — 22,779 22,779
Bank borrowings SRITER - — 3,876 3,876
Financial derivative liabilities TEemIT AR - 12,844 - 12,844
Financial liability at fair value — ZAFEFEBERLRE
through profit or loss WeRaE 1,394 - - 1,394
Total wE 1,394 12,844 158,997 173,235
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)

16 RERBSHMBIR (&)

Company
ATE]
Loans and receivables
BERRERR
2010 2009
—O—0O% —OONHEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets as per company A BB R R FTR
statement of financial position ZEE
Deposits and other assets Al hHMEE 31 594
Amounts due from subsidiaries LB B8 A B 5RIB 315,836 319,798
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReFEER 1,122 1,137
Total 4aza 316,989 321,529
Company
NG
Other financial liabilities
Hittr ke E
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OOh#F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Liabilities as per company AR BERRRAT
statement of financial position Z8f&
Other payables and accruals Hib e tERIE R ERFTIER 9,138 4,458
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTFY /B A Al 5RIE 26,856 26,856
Total k= 35,994 31,314
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17 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 17 & BAEAREMEE
Group Company
L] VNG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—O0—-0F Z—OOhF Z—ZO—0%F Z—OON#F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT BT IT BT
Deposits A 54,601 48,431 - 594
Prepayments TR ER 1,034 1,935 285 227
Other assets Hh&E 31 87 31 —
55,666 50,453 316 821
Less: Current portion W NERE (21,629) (17,435) (298) (360)
Non-current portion RHIE S 34,037 33,018 18 461
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other Al ENEBAREMEEZREAEEEATEKXR
assets approximate their fair values. BUBFT ©
18 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 FLMEBATES
Company
AT
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OONHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment FE_ETAXD - Ak ANE IR BUE 97,243 97,243
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, e FERI B A B FUR D ERIR - B RIREK
interest-free, and repayable on demand. The carrying B - HEEmERAFERBUES -
amounts of the balances approximate their fair values.
Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are RZO—OF=ZA=+—HZEBWBRARIZERH
shown on page 130. EHBEFINE 1308 ©
19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BHRHEMEKIEE
Group
58
2010 2009
—O0-0% —O0OhF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables B S EWRE 45,751 29,384
Other receivables Hth FEU AR IR 4,193 2,608
49,944 31,992
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables

with an ageing analysis at 31 March 2010 as follows:

19 HRERAMEBRIESR (&)
RZO—OF=A=+—HHEZREMEYIRE
NPTBENENE SRETZUEEEREBLMAE

FREREV D AT IR AN T

Group
%£H

2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+An 26,495 20,330
Between 31 to 60 days —t+—H=Z=Xt+H 10,128 4,057
Between 61 to 90 days At—HZEh+H 8,357 3,589
Over 90 days N+BLE 771 1,408
45,751 29,384

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

AEBNRURENRAENATIIEE SEA

Group
3]
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON#EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 40,337 22,235
Renminbi AR 5,414 7,149
45,751 29,384
The Group has established credit policies and the general REBEMENEEER —RATNERABAT

credit terms allowed range from 0 to 60 days.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19
Trade receivables that are less than 60 days past due are

not considered impaired. At 31 March 2010, trade

receivables of HK$9,128,000 (2009: HK$4,997,000) were

past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history

of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is

as follows:

WARKMEBUIESR (&)

RZO—OF=ZA=+—H  BSERKZEE
9,128,000 5t (ZOONA : #¥ 4,997,000 7T) 4
B EENERE o WERBIREEGIEEE
TBFGEMBELRP o WEEB FEUGRNERE S
M

Group
£@

2010 2009
—O—-0%f —O0OhHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Between 61 to 90 days NtT—BZEATH 8,357 3,589
Over 90 days A+BMUE 771 1,408
9,128 4,997

Trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets
and the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Included in trade and other receivables is HK$28,892,000
(2009: HK$10,835,000) being amount due from fellow
subsidiaries. The amount is unsecured, interest free and
repayable in accordance to the Group’s established credit
policies.

B REMERERERLERECHERE - £3)
SHH - FERBNSESERAES LB RER
RN AFE - ARETFE T ERE R EM

o
an °

BIEEE S REWERTEH /B 28,892,000 7T (O
O + 7% 10,835,000 JT) JIERWR ZHE A
RIFUE o ZFCEERRE - 2 ERIEAEEMEN
EEBRRER -

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 BEALT
2010 2009
—0—-0% —OO0Oh%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
At 1 April (Associate/Jointly mA—B (Banr,/
controlled entity) HEZERAR) 19,586 19,322
Disposal of partial interest LEFD HEERARER
in jointly controlled entity - (155)
Share of profit of an associate PGB & A B & F) 3,288 416
Dividend received AR S (11,563) —
Exchange differences fEH =5 4 3
At 31 March (Associate) —A=+—8 (BERQR) 11,315 19,586

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



20 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20 BELWE (&)

On 1 April 2008, the Group disposed 1% equity interest in RZOONFMA—H « REBDVEE 1 T EH
Marni (Hong Kong) Limited (“Marni HK”), a jointly controlled [ &7 BIMarni (Hong Kong) Limited ("Marni
entity, to Marni International S.A. at a cash consideration of HK") & 2 2 — 2 B&# T Marni International S.A -
HK$1, reducing its interest to 49%. Marni HK became an BEREREED 2T - BREHEERANEER
associated company of the Group thereafter as the Group 3% Marni HK BE R Z 7 » ti Mami HK B H
has retained significant influence over Marni HK subsequent BAARDEZHERT - (EARZN—BH - &
to the disposal. As part of the transaction, the Group RTE Marni HK %2 T H) 49% 2 #Ex - AEEL T
granted to Marni International S.A. a call option and Marni Marni International S.A. — &R Hi#E - 5 Marni
International S.A. granted to the Group a put option on the International S.A. TR4a T 78 & B — &R & B -
Group’s remaining 49% equity interest in Marni HK, whereby EFTR_O—=FNA—H ' LKREIHZE LT
on 1 April 2013, both parties may exercise the options at AR ARETENERITEDE - 2 B AR
formula-based prices specified in the shareholders AFESBEITHRENSHEE, (BFE) @ T
agreement. The options are classified as financial asset/ SFESMELLEMBERRER - RZOON\FMA
(liability) at fair value through profit or loss and presented on —HEZOONF=A=+—1  HEz AT FE
a net basis in the consolidated statement of financial SRR 3,776,000 7T K A EE 1,394,000 7T (B
position. The net fair value of the options as at 1 April 2008 FE21) c WHEERSGEHAEEEHEZEZOON
and 31 March 2009 were (HK$3,776,000) and FZA=+—HAFENGFENERNEMFERE
(HK$1,394,000) respectively (Note 21). As a result of the (M7 8) #EFR T AME 3,931,000 L7 SR LR E
disposal transaction , the Group recognised a net cost of NaElfn 2 KA FEE A 2,382,000 T2 B AT
transferring shares in jointly controlled entity of BEEBEmCENERAE A ATERS - TEE
HK$3,931,000 and a fair value gain on financial liability at ZO—OF=ZA=+—HIFEWREMERLS -

fair value through profit or loss of HK$2,382,000 in other
losses, net, in the consolidated income statement (Note 8)
for the year ended 31 March 2009. There is no such
transaction for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Reconciliation of net cost of transferring shares in jointly EEARERARAFRAHERNOT ¢
controlled entity is as follows:
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OONE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Cash consideration Eﬁ@{{t{g ) - _
Net assets disposed &R EEE - 155
Fair value of financial liability at fair REEEBERATFE
value through profit or loss BRBERLENSRARE
as at date of disposal - 3,776
- 3,931
At 31 March 2010, the particulars of the associate are as RZO—OF=A=+—H  BERATHNERD
follows: I
Place of Percentage of Issued and fully
Name of associate incorporation equity holding paid share capital Principal activities
BEAEEH 3y FEEZEIE ERTRARRE TEXK
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Designer fashion
Marni (Hong Kong) Limited \ 49 ~ Oof HK$1000 each  retailing
(Fong Kong) B 100 B % B eV T

S 1,000 T

ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 118



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

20

21

119

PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
represented the net fair value of the call and put options as
disclosed in Note 20. Valuations of these options were
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer,
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, using discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

MR R M
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20 BEAR (8)
The following amounts, representing the Group’s share of ITAREBFEHE R EE BERESE
the assets, liabilities and results of an associate, were WEBRBREREELGE BN E KRGS AR
included in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial A
position and consolidated income statement:
2010 2009
—O0O—0% —OO0Oh®E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Current assets MENEE 24,711 36,105
Current liabilities mENEE (14,808) (18,487)
Non-current assets ERBNEE 1,412 1,968
Share of net assets TG & EFAE 11,315 19,586
Income WA 56,479 50,352
Expense i (52,495) (50,114)
Profit before income tax BRTIRT A 3,984 238
Income tax (expense)/credit st (BRH) (& (696) 178
Share of profit after income tax PG BRI 1E 2 7 3,288 416
Proportionate interest in an associate’s &t Il FE(L B A &
operating lease commitments AT E R 4,872 5,813
At the date of statement of financial position, there are no HEAEAIL  REEMBBE2HE AR 2RI
contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in an REPRAERIREE  MZEHE AR RS TIE
associate, and no contingent liabilities of the entity itself. EfskAEE -
Amount due from/(to) an associate is unsecured, interest- fEd, (FEfT) B ARIFIBNEERR - 28 RIE
free, and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the TRER - EFRmMERQFERBER -
balance approximates its fair value.
FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 BRATFEEARELENESAR

BEATEEBBELENERABEEMT 208
BHRERROREFATE - 2BENMESRS
BERBEY BEXFEBRBRNTEEMEERAER
RENAREIRR S ME DN AN EBER LT
it e
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21 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 BATEHEBRSCENHEMEAR (&)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON#EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 April MA—H 1,394 —
Addition in relation to the disposal B & £ F
of partial interest in jointly BREARER
controlled entity 23 - 3,776
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAFESBERLERD
liability at fair value through SRAEI AFEEBE (W)
profit or loss 2,572 (2,382)
At 31 March =A=+—H 3,966 1,394
22 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES 22 HiEemIAAR
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON%EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Forward foreign exchange contracts- INERIEE X — RS mELE H
cash flow hedges 5,380 12,844
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 HBEeRFE&SFEEH
Group Company
£H AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—O0-0f ZOOnAFE =O0-0f ZOOAIfF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT BET T PR T IT
Cash at bank and in hand RTTREFRE 233,931 105,085 1,122 1,137
Short - term bank deposits RHISRITIER 81,376 108,190 - —
315,307 213,275 1,122 1,137
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was RERTEFNERMNERO0IE(ZOONEF N8
0.3% (2009: 1.8%); these deposits had an average maturity E): WEEFFHTHIBHAR 18 R(Z=O0O0ONEF
of 18 days (2009: 28 days). 28K) o
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in
the following currencies:

23 Be&RALFEERAE (B)
REBNRITEFRRES AT EE REN

Group
£H

2010 2009
—O—0%f —O0Oh%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Hong Kong dollars BIT 197,773 95,506
United States dollars ETT 73,475 99,330
Renminbi AR 31,883 7,757
Euro dollars BT 11,758 10,321
Others Efb 418 361
315,307 213,275

All the Company’s bank balances and cash are

B RAZIRITHEF RIRE BB B IEREN

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at 31 March

2010 is as follows:

24 BENRZIERRECRE

RZO—OF=A=+—HHENEZREREN

SEHREO MR MT

Group
£8

2010 2009
—O0O—0% —OONHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
Due within 30 days —-+HAZIE 38,493 45,072
Due between 31 to 60 days =+—H=EATHIH 2,199 4,545
Due between 61 to 90 days NT—HZEATHIH 729 1,502
Due after 90 days N+ HA EEIE 19 5,921
41,440 57,040

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

AREERENE SRARENEIENREENA T

payables are denominated in the following currencies: EWRB
2010 2009
—O0—-0% —OON%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T IT
Euro dollars BATT 23,447 27,452
Hong Kong dollars BT 7,249 10,286
United States dollars EV 7,978 12,655
Japanese yen Hot 2,529 5,751
Renminbi AR 63 302
Others Hith 174 594
41,440 57,040
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25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HttEFERRRENTE

Other payables and accruals of the Group at 31 March HE-O—OF=A=+—8  HiENEREKE
2010 included a provision for onerous contract of HK$Nil SAEETeE—BAHBEE T (ZOOAE : B
(2009: HK$1,263,000) in respect of a purchase commitment # 1,263,000 7T) A BB K HEMEL N REAR
to a vendor. REE S QEE -
26 BANK BORROWINGS 26 SRITH®
Group
3]
2010 2009
—O—-0O%f Z—OON%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trust receipt loans EEBUBEE - 3,876
At 31 March 2009, bank borrowings of the Group were RZOONF=ZA=+—1H ' ZEBBHRITETIA
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with effective interest BILRBA - RERFRNESG5.08% © RITER
rate of 5.08% per annum. The borrowings were repaid in EREFAREFE -

the current year.

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS 27 BERERE
Number
of shares HK$’000
g = B¥T T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEBK0.10 T2
Beginning and end of the year L@ AR EA Y] K HA R 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SRAEE®0.10 T2
Beginning and end of the year LBAR BRI K EAR 1,624,000,000 162,400
Share options RIRE
At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27 RZOOWFNA Z++BETHAQARREAESF
August 2004, the Shareholders of the Company approved A& E - ARERRERERA—IBITHA B3Rk 4%
the adoption of an executive Share Incentive Scheme to BstEl - MARARMNEMBARMNEERESEE
grant share options to the employees and directors of the REEHELATEIE E R AR AR R MAR D ©

Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the
Company for a fixed period.
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 27 BERPBERE (&)
Share Incentive Scheme R IR E
Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant HEZO—OF=ZA=+—H ' XRARIRIEKRKE
to the Share incentive Scheme and the share options Bt B FT AR 5 A SRR I i R AT Y SR AR AE S 51 40
outstanding at 31 March 2010 are as follows: N

Number of Share Options

AREHE

Exercisable
Grant Date Exercise  period As at As at
Day/Month/ Price Day/Month/ 1 April 31 March
Year HK$  Year 2009 2010
BIEAH TEE TEARS —ZOOAE Granted Exercised Lapsed =O—-0O%f
B/B/& B% RB/RB/% mA—H EERE 2iTfE EBREA¥ =ZA=+-H
17 September 2004 0.405 1 September 10,250,000 - —  (10,250,000) —
17/09/2004 2005 to

31 August 2009

01/09/2005-31/08/2009

For the year ended 31 March 2009 and 2010, there were
no employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement as all share options are

vested.

As at 31 March 2010, all the share options granted by the
Company pursuant to the Share incentive Scheme have

RprE RS RETS R - MEBE_OONR
ZO—OF=R=t+—HIFENGFakERTIL
EMRETRREER -

RZO—OF=A=+—H  FABEFRRARERRK
ERED AT B P AR IR AV R A AE B AR AR -

lapsed.
28 RESERVES 28 ikl
The reserves of the Group and the Company as at 31 RZO—OF=ZA=+—8  AEBERARGE 2R
March 2010 are analysed as follows: AT
Group Company
] AFE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—O0—-0% ZOONHFE ZO—0f Z=ZOOh#F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BET T BT T
Share premium & (E 3,728 3,728 3,728 3,728
Capital surplus BEARRH 76 76 - —
Contributed surplus AR 139,196 139,196 159,375 159,375
Exchange fluctuation reserve b R B R (1,862) (1,964) - —
Employee compensation reserve EE e HE - 2,645 - 2,645
Hedging reserve Eapel= (2,515) (7,378) - -
Retained profits ZIRATN 204,067 166,183 55,030 62,074
Total reserves GlEEE 342,690 302,486 218,133 227,822
Proposed final dividends (Note 13) BRI RS
(M43E13) (16,240) - (16,240) -
326,450 302,486 201,893 227,822
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28

29

RESERVES (Continued)

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the excess of
the nominal value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor during the group reorganisation in 1990.
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1990 over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

At 31 March 2010, the Company had reserves of
HK$55,030,000 (2009: HK$62,074,000) available for
distribution. The Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$3,728,000 (2009: HK$3,728,000), may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. The
contributed surplus of HK$159,375,000 (2009:
HK$159,375,000) is distributable subject to the requirements
under section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and Bye-law 134 of the Company.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable
in the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same tax authority. The offset
amounts are as follows:

28

29

iR (&)
TEBZHABRBRBENR-NNOFEEEHEFA
BAZMB QR Z B E{ERE H R R FTEITIAMER
B BRMHEAEZ LR - ARRZHARBEIEN—
NNOFEEEARKBEHRB AR 2 AR BBHA
RAIFABITMER B Z BRI EE 2 5 -

RZO—OF=A=+—H  ARaaRESRZ
18 A8 55,030,000 T (ZOONEF : B
62,074,000 7T) ° AAR A ABBARARDIRZ
IS (3% (BER B A7BH 3,728,000 T (ZOONLF :
753,728,000 7T) ° AAEIHBA R IZ R
1981 FEHRE (ARUEH) % A ERAREIHA
AIABAIE 134 IEMIER DR © AT DR ABE
159,375,000 7t (Z OO L4 : ¥ 159,375,000

JT) o

BB
EAEFF 19 B DA 2 (0% 90 6522 1 P 2 A B
5 -

EREEAHTENBRAERBEERRERTE
B - BIREPERS KA — B - BT #
REFEHEERABEIREE - HENSEN
™

Group
£8

2010 2009

—O0O—-0O%f —OO0ONHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT
Deferred income tax assets to be HBiB12 @ A%

recovered after more than 12 months  WEIRYIRIEFTSFE & 5,327 4,478
Deferred income tax liabilities to be BiE12 E A%

settled after more than 12 months TBIEMREMEHAsE - (645)

5,327 3,833
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

29 SRIEFRBR (42)

Group
&5
2010 2009
—O0—-0%&% —O0ONHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
At 1 April mA—HA 3,833 317
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated — R&RA R
income statement A (RRERPIZ) 2,726 (2,341)
(Charged)/credited directly to equity gz ERE (k) Rk (1,232) 5,876
Effect of change in tax rates charged  FiRIEE
to the consolidated income statement 474 Wz &K - (246)
Effect of change in tax rates credited i Rpi%&
directly to equity B EELR — 227
At 31 March =A=+—H 5,327 3,833
The gross movement of deferred income tax assets account RIEFFEHEENBEEEHMT -
is as follows:
Provision
Fair value Tax for Tax
loss depreciation inventory losses Total
DHERE BEITE FERE BEER R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 March 2008 —OONEF
and 1 April 2008 —A=+—H
MIMA—H — 4,284 16 — 4,300
(Charged)/credited to the RiraliER
consolidated income (RRERIIZ)
statement SFA - (1,835) 3 138 (1,694)
Credited directly to equity EREFEELRE 2,120 - - - 2,120
Effect of change in tax rates
charged to the consolidated 3R 2f &
income statement fra i E RN - (245) 1) - (246)
At 31 March 2009 ZOONF
=R=+—H 2,120 2,204 18 138 4,480
Credited/(charged) to the NG Ene
consolidated income A
statement (RRERYISD) - 2,219 @) (138) 2,079
Charged directly to equity TRz BRI (1,232) - - - (1,232)
At 31 March 2010 —O—0OfF
=A=+—H 888 4,423 16 — 5,327

125

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED



29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The gross movement of deferred income tax liabilities
amount is as follows:

29 SRIEFR\BWR (42)
BIEMSHAEBENREFHINT

Fair value Tax
gain depreciation Total
NEERE HIERE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BET T BT T
At 31 March 2008 —OONF=A=+—H
and 1 April 2008 FEMA—H (8,983) — (3,983)
Charged to the consolidated
income statement RERE W TR ERSI= — (647) (647)
Credited directly to equity e R 3,756 — 3,756
Effect of change in tax rates MBS E TR
credited directly to equity 227 — 227
At 31 March 2009 —OOhF=RA=+—H — (647) (647)
Credited to the consolidated REREWERETA
income statement — 647 647

At 31 March 2010 —O—O%=RA=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

The Group has potential unrecognised tax losses of
HK$99,855,000 (2009: HK$105,972,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income, HK$29,431,000 (2009:
HK$46,999,000) of which will expire within 5 to 10 years.
There is no expiry period for other tax losses.
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PR e BRI M 3R T SR P AR 88 2 TRIS S 1R EERR

NEE BB 99,855,000 T (ZOONF : B
105,972,000 7T) H)EIE AR MERTLIEE 18 Al 4542 A
AR RERTUA + B P BB 29,431,000 7T
(ZOONF : B# 46,999,000 7T) KIMRIBEIES
RAZ+TFANER - BB BT EEAR -
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30 COMMITMENTS 30 A&iE
(a) Operating lease commitments - as lessee (a) KREHERE-—AEE
At 31 March 2010, the Group had future aggregate RZO—OF=A=+—H FEERET
minimum lease payments under non - cancellable AR B EMEN 2 ARRSERER
operating leases as follows: PAFEMT
Group
1|
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OONHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T B TIT
Land and buildings: THIREF
Not later than one year F—FNRN 156,643 155,468
Later than one year and not FEFATFNA
later than five years 243,448 238,673
Later than five years TF1& 25,783 53,911
425,874 448,052
Payment obligations in respect of operating leases BRAERQMABRINEES NI NEEL AR
where rentals vary with gross revenues are not REEEEL W -
included as future minimum lease payment.
(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (b) REAERE-HEE
At 31 March 2010, the Group had future aggregate RZO—OF=A=+—8  FEERET
minimum lease receipts under an non-cancellable AR R T E R 2 AR SIER &R
operating lease as follows: ERFEMT
Group
&8
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OONnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
Land and buildings: T RIEF
Not later than one year F—FNA 2,700 —
Later than one year and FEEFRFA
not later than five years 2,700 —
5,400 —
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30 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 30 &g (&)

(c) Capital commitments (c) BEXREIE
Capital expenditure at the date of statement of REZERABDAREENEARFAZHOT :
financial position but not yet incurred is as follows:
Group
&8
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OON%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property plant and equipment BERLERBENYE -
contracted but not provided for BB KA 4,080 2,342
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 HEBATHES
The immediate parent of the Group is Allied Wisdom REBHEE A A A Alied Wisdom International
International Limited, a company incorporated in the British Limited * RIREBEZRBEKIL Z AT - REEK
Virgin Islands. The ultimate parent of the Group is Wisdom =X F) A Wisdom Gateway Limited * 758
Gateway Limited, a company incorporated in the British Jrilee 3= ) D AVAA/NCT I
Virgin Islands.
During the year, the Group had the following significant FARKEMBEY EEEATHEARRZGH I
related party transactions: N
(a) Transaction with intermediate holding company (a) BHEANEBRAIATDVHIRES
Group
&8
2010 2009
—O0—-0O% —OONnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Management fee paid to EX TR ERAR]
intermediate holding company HWERE RS E A 990 990
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

129

(b)

(c)

(d)

31 HERATHXS (&)

(b) ERRRKBARNNKS

Group
£8
2010 2009
—O—-0% —OON%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETIT
Rental expenses paid to EXNTRRMEAR]
a fellow subsidiary Eoyickab-gun 9,900 9,900
Rental income received from S EES N
a fellow subsidiary e WA 1,350 —
Transaction with an associate (c) EEHERATNRS
Group
£H
2010 2009
—O—0% —OO0ONF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Management fee received B E AR EEREER
from an associate 2,318 1,965

Key management compensation

Details of disclosure are shown in Note 10(a).

(d) FEEEAEME

BRBESHIINME 10() °
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Principal Subsidiaries

TEMBLAE

At 31 March 2010
—O—O%=H=+—H

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation fully paid - up
and kind of Proportion held share capital/
legal entity Place of FERAE AL registered capital
Name AL AR operations Direct  Indirect BETRHZRAE  Principal activities
AAEH *EERES) Lg%y EERE  BERE il EREE EBEB
Joyce Boutique British Virgin Asia 100% - Ordinary Investment holding
International Limited Islands, limited M US$1,500 REER
liability company L% 1,500 €T
EBELEE
BEREAAT
Joyce Boutique Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong 100% — Ordinary Designer
limited liability B HK$100,000 fashion retailing
company LRAREE 100,000 7T TERIRRE
& BREERA
Joyce Beauty (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Hong Kong — 100% Ordinary Cosmetics retailing
Limited limited liability Ei HK$10,000 ZEHm
company L@RE 10,000 7T
B8 EREMAH
Joyce Boutique (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Hong Kong — 100% Ordinary HK$2 Designer fashion
Limited limited liability 0 EEBAEL 27T retaling & distribution
company TERCHE RS
% BREALF
2R () mEERAR PRC, wholly PRC - 100% RMB 20,000,000 Designer fashion
foreign-owned  FEAREFE AR 20,000,000 7T retailing & distribution
enterprise TERCHEIRE
hE ARAME -
NE2ERE
Ad Hoc (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong — 100% Ordinary Designer
limited liability 0 HK$1,000,000 fashion retailing
company ELiRik#E% 1,000,000 7T TERMRE
% BREALA
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T FHBERE

AEEBEREMBFE 2 C MM EENEERAER
2T RBEKERYBRE - YEEMIELEE 2HE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set U
out below.
RESULTS Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
£ 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—Z0-0% —0O0ON%F —O0ON%F —00t# ZO0ONREF
=ZA=+-B =A=t-B =A=+-B =BA=t-B =BA=+-H
EEI FELE FELE FELE FEIE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
TURNOVER ] 1,063,776 979,953 927,116 790,395 755,684
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) EXBF/ (B]) 41,678 (2,225) 45,447 56,790 73,671
Finance costs BERA (10) (707) (87) 19) (100)
Share of profit of jointly FE£RER D FAR

controlled entity - - 11,113 4,812 3,347
Share of profit of an associate il A=YNS k] 3,288 416 - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BHARA (F8B)

INCOME TAX 44,956 (2,516) 56,473 61,583 76,918
Income tax (expense)/ credit % (BR) /£4% (9,717) 5,643 (4,390) (10,550) (2,900)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EREEAELERT

EQUITY HOLDERS 35,239 3,127 52,083 51,033 74,018
Final proposed dividend BIRERRERE 16,240 - 22,736 22,736 32,401
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
BEHEE 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

R=ZO-0fF MWZOOAE RZOONE RZOO0tE MWZOOKRE

ZB=+-B Z=ZR=t-H ZR=ft-H ZR=t-H ZA=t-H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BEFT BETFT BETT BB

Property, plant and equipment mE - BERE 27,258 65,218 71,730 54,404 55,530
Deposits, prepayments e BHER

and other assets REMEE 34,037 33,018 40,127 42,659 28,257
Interest in jointly HEBROAER

controlled entity - — 19,322 8,209 3,397
Interest in an associate BENRER 11,315 19,586 - - -
Deferred income tax assets ELAEHEE 5,327 4,478 317 2,500 -
Current assets MBEE 592,030 526,100 580,244 519,324 493,510
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 669,967 648,400 711,740 627,096 580,694
Non-current liabilities FRBaE (3,966) (2,039) - - -
Current liabilities MEEE (160,911) (181,475) (205,016) (168,592) (142,893)
TOTAL LIABILITIES waE (164,877) (183,514) (205,016) (168,592) (142,893)
NET ASSETS EERE 505,090 464,886 508,724 458,504 437,801

131

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED






	Cover
	Content
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Disclosure of Further Corporate Information
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Company Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Company Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Principal Subsidiaries
	Five-year Summary Financial Information
	Back Cover

